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Financial Summary

EERE
SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARBTRTE AREFTT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 22,101,871 22,487,671 23,328,991 21,405,723 16,931,929
EH Gross profit 8,140,733 7,308,387 7,779,629 7,401,844 4,942 612
B PS8 A& Profit before income tax 1,170,761 414,678 1,116,048 1,076,929 396,391
FT8fiFEX Income tax expense (336,256) (129,141) (199,636) (221,041) (84,451)
FEHEF Profit for the year 834,505 285,537 916,412 855,888 311,940
RN BIER Profit attributable to equity
B ABGET holders of the Company 834,505 285,537 916,412 855,888 311,940
ey Dividends 166,901 57,107 183,282 171,178 93,582
AR¥S ARES ARES ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BREREF Basic earnings per share 19.32 7.18 25.46 23.78 8.67
MW12B31H
As at 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARBTRE ARBTT AREBTT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BMEE Total assets 21,606,419 21,264,409 18,967,792 16,539,813 13,737,392
BEE Total liabilities 10,004,016 10,427,671 10,825,624 8,868,745 6,926,497
R Total equity 11,602,403 10,836,738 8,142,168 7,671,068 6,810,895
BeMEE&EEY  Cashand cash equivalents 1,473,317 1,804,022 1,413,929 2,290,809 2,369,050
mE (BE)F5E Net current (Liabilities) (1,337,930) (632,403) (828,438) (30,930) (469,559)

% — ¥ E#E R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2015, the growth of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) continued to slow down.
The GDP growth rate declined to 6.9% as compared with the
same period last year, indicating that the slowdown of economic
growth has become a new norm. The food and beverage industry
continues to undergo structural adjustment. Development of
existing products has generally slowed down or has begun to
decline. In contrast, the innovated and upgraded new products
have risen and lead the industry’s development. Uni-President
China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) will continue to adjust the product structure to
grasp the trend of consumers’ demand, and take the new round
of opportunities in the food and beverage industry to develop a
new setup based on innovative researches and brand-building
operation.

The Group operates on solid ground with steady finance, strong
core competitiveness and good business management ability, and
maintains the notion of “Stand Firm, No Rash (/%% B &)
in order to continue to optimize the product and profit portfolios,
which have become the most important indicator of assessment for
each business department. By enhancing its general organization
efficiency and refining its business nature, the Group expects to
effectively respond to market changes, expand market size and
maximize efficiency in the ever-changing and fast moving consumer
goods market. The Group endeavors to achieve the business goals
set by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

All employees of the Group have united to make efforts to promote
the industry with innovative products. In respect of the juice and
tea drinks as well as the instant noodles businesses, the Group has
outperformed the overall industry in terms of growth. “Haizhiyan
(2 F)" “Classmate Xiaoming (/NERE£)” and “Soup Daren
(J5# A)” have driven the Group’s revenue growth in 2015
and have effectively improved its profit structure. The Group has
recorded a revenue of RMB22,101.9 million and a profit attributable
to shareholders of RMB834.5 million in 2015.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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In 2015, the entire instant noodles market continued to decline.
In order to look for new opportunities, encourage industry
upgrade and create consumer demands, the Group maintains its
strategies to encourage the development of medium and high-
end instant noodles. In 2015, the Group has recorded a revenue
of RMB7,567.4 million on instant noodles, representing a decrease
of 4.9% as compared with the same period last year. However,
profit saw significant growth amidst the economic downturn due
to successful transformation, appropriate adjustment of product
structure and decline of raw material prices. “Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage and Beef Flavored Noodles ( B3 4-%E ) ” remained
top in sales in China’s spicy instant noodles market, while “Soup
Daren (/%% A)” has grasped the trend of young consumers
favoring medium and high-end instant noodles, and became the
major brand on the market with a price tag over RMB5, recording
a revenue of RMB500 million in 2015, and is expected to maintain
a two digits growth in 2016. The Group has become the leading
enterprise in the market of instant noodles priced above RMB5. In
2015, it continued to launch the fashionable “Light Noodle ( &5 ) ”
products with a whole new brand positioning and packaging to
provide better choices to the consumers.

In 2015, the Group has recorded a revenue of RMB14,051.1 million
on the beverages business, representing an increase of 0.3% as
compared with the same period last year. As the overall economy
growth is slowing down, the drinks market is also affected,
recording an overall market growth of merely 1.2%. Meanwhile,
the consumption model is quickly shifting, and the zero-sum
competition between existing products and innovative products is
significant. Based on the spirit of progress through innovation, the
Group has launched two new brands: “Haizhiyan (82 %) ” and
“Classmate Xiaoming (/\Z E &) ” with strong sales trend amidst
the declining market of tea and juice drinks. These two brands
generated an aggregated revenue of over RMB2,500 million in
2015, which is distinguished within the drinks industry. This enables
the Group to emerge from the low-priced competition in the past
and turn a new leaf within the market of medium and high-end
drinks.
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The Group will continue to develop innovative and high-quality
products to satisfy the consumers’ demand to grasp the
opportunities arisen with the transformation of consumers’ demand.
In 2016, the Group will adhere to its plans for new products
development, and continue to launch high-quality differentiated and
innovative products in order to solidify the Group’s position within
the markets of medium and high-end drinks and instant noodles.

Based on the overall performance of the Group in 2015 and taking
the surplus, overall financial condition and capital expenditure of
the Group into account, the Board will propose a payment of final
cash dividend of RMB3.864 cents per share (amounting to a total
dividend of RMB166.9 million) for the year ended 31 December
2015 at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The PRC’s economy is expected to continue to slow down in 2016,
while the GDP growth remains moderate. The food and beverage
market will continue its transformation along with the adjustment
of industrial structure. It is expected that the economies of scale
and the advantage of low costs will no longer play an important
part to the overall operation of corporations, and only corporations
with innovations and proper brand management will have the
opportunity to stand out from the homogeneous competition of
low-priced products. The Group stays positive in the face of this
new round of changes, and is optimistic about the development
in 2016. The Group will focus on its core competitiveness and
leverage on its organizational abilities in innovative development,
to grasp the market trend and consumers’ preference, and to
continue developing high-quality innovative products. It will focus its
operation in the major markets, satisfying the consumers’ demands
and create reasonable returns for all shareholders.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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Chairman’s Statement

2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

KEBZAUGUETER 2inMBS 58 The stable development of the Group rides on the support and
SEHMB N AAZERREEEAEL -t efforts of different parties. On behalf of the Board, | hereby extend
JERE EBEBEN SREERBRENSR HEX  my sincere gratitude to our clients, suppliers, business partners,
BHRUAROHE UTEREE2EETHE—  financial institutions and shareholders for their full support, and to

FRENE N RERNBGE - our staff for their dedication and contribution over the past year.
BEX Lo Chih-Hsien
FE Chairman
20163 H18H 18 March 2016
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The growth of the PRC’s GDP continues to slow down, with a year-
on-year growth rate decreased to 6.9% in 2015. Slowed economic
growth has become a new norm. Each industry is facing the
pressure of structural adjustment and transformation. The PRC’s
food and beverage industry is impacted by the overall economy,
showing a slowed growth or negative growth. Consumers’
preferences are also quickly shifting. The zero-sum competition
between different products or different types of product is very
significant. Only with an understanding of the market trend can the
Group succeed in the industrial structural adjustment and take the
opportunity to create a future market.

The Group closely upholds the idea of innovative research and
brand promotion. In 2015, under the pressure of a slowing
economy, the Group endeavored to develop by innovation and
successfully adjusted its product structure and increased the
proportion of products with high gross profits. As a result, the
Group’s profitability is substantially increased. The performance of
the main business of the Group is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB22,101.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 1.7% from RMB22,487.7 million of
2014. Revenue from the instant noodles business decreased
by 4.9%, and revenue from the beverages products business
slightly increased by 0.3%, standing at RMB7,567.4 million and
RMB14,051.1 million respectively, accounting for 34.2% and 63.6%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year, gross
profit of the Group increased by 11.4% from RMB7,308.4 million
of the corresponding period last year to RMB8,140.7 million while
gross profit margin increased by 4.3 percentage point from 32.5%
for the corresponding period of last year to 36.8%, which were
mainly due to the increase in the share of sales in high gross profit
margin products of the Group and decrease in bulk purchase prices
of raw materials.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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During the Year, share of profits of investments accounted for using
the equity method increased 32.8% to RMB112.9 million (2014:
RMB85 million). Operating profit was RMB1,031.5 million for the
Year, substantially increasing by 177.4% from the operating profit
of RMB371.9 million for 2014. During the Year, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company was RMB834.5 million, representing
an increase of 192.3% as compared with RMB285.5 million of
the corresponding period last year, which were mainly attributable
to the effective operation efforts and enhancement in competitive
power of our products, as well as decrease in bulk purchase
prices of raw materials. Earnings per share during the Year were
RMB19.32 cents (2014: RMB7.18 cents).

During the Year, in light of the effective efforts of the Group
in utilising marketing resources as well as the precision in
positioning our brands and placing our channel resources in
relation to launching new products, the selling and marketing
expenses slightly increased by 0.4% to RMB6,320.5 million (2014:
RMB6,294.8 million). During the Year, administrative expenses
amounted to RMB1,015.6 million (2014: RMB967.8 million), an
increase of 4.9% compared to the corresponding period last year,
which was mainly due to a corresponding increase in surtaxes
(such as urban maintenance and construction tax) resulting from
the increase in gross profit margin of the Group, but still falls within
the expectation of the management.

in 2015
the Group’s instant noodles business recorded a revenue of

Since the overall economic growth is slowing down,

RMB7,567.4 million, representing a decrease of 4.9% as compared
with the corresponding period last year. Amid the sluggish market,
the Group leverages on our major competitive advantage of
“innovation through thinking (£ & &J%7) " and insists on the
strategy of “value-based marketing (B{ETTH) ”
overcome the difficulty of low prices and product similarity, and

, SO as to gradually

to seek more market opportunities of in markets of high added
values, and to promote long-term sustainable development through
innovations. In 2015, the fall of prices of the main raw materials
of instant noodles, coupled with the Group’s continuous efforts
in product structure adjustments, resulted in the gradual increase
in the sales ratio of high-priced instant noodles, hence increasing
the gross profit margin of the instant noodles business by 4.7% as
compared with the corresponding period last year.
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With regards to the market share and brand reputation aspects,
data from Nielsen indicates that the Group’s performance continues
to improve, and recorded a market share of 18.3% in 2015. Market
share of our core brand, “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage
(#—218EE3L) " established its number one status among the
brands. Market share of “Soup Daren (}5# A )" experienced a
sharp increase, resulting in the Group taking the first place in the
market of high-priced instant noodles brands selling at over RMB5
in 2015 (Nielsen’s data). According to the “Research Report on the
Online Reputation of Instant Noodle Brands ( J7 {8 % & f2 #4945 O
MRS ) " for the third quarter of 2015 released by the Big Data
Research Laboratory of China Statistics Information Service Center,
the instant noodles of the Group has received the title of the best
Internet word of mouth among the instant noodle brands for three
consecutive years.

As the leading product of the pickled
cabbage products category, we insisted
on perfecting the experience of sourness
and crunchiness for our products under
the “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage (#i —Z BB )" series, and
implemented a comprehensive upgrade

#
-]
=
B
e
&

P

on the product with a rich combination
of vegetables and meat dices, bringing
double enjoyment in both sight and taste

A ——for our consumers, reinforcing its image as

the most authentic and delicious instant noodles brand in the minds
of our consumers. During the Lunar New Year holidays of 2015,
the Group cooperated with Mango TV, an influential TV station in
the PRC, to launch a promotional event, during which every buyer
of our products was rewarded with a VIP ticket for 7 days of free
viewing, which was well received and participated eagerly by the
consumers. Meanwhile, the Group continued to hold the “authentic
as you see it (IEsR&EB R )" pickled cabbage plant site-visits,
allowing more and more consumers to experience the fermentation
artistry of traditional pickled cabbage in person. In the new
commercial video clip “Crafts Episode ( ZE ) ”, “Uni-President
Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage (#t —Z 18 3) " continued to be
presented in a humorous style, in which the sound of fermentation
“Gu-lu Gu-lu ("M E) " was composed into a symphony to
communicate the core idea that the authentic traditional pickled
cabbage “can breathe and become more sour and crunchy (&
MO 538 ) " during the fermentation process. In terms of our

# — {2 B2 IR A BR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] /l
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media mix, “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage (£ —% 18
%) " has substantially increased the use of new media in response
to the choice of media of younger consumers, so as to fully utilize the
new media to better interact with our consumers.

“Soup Daren (/% A)” has maintained a
double-digits rapid growth in the Year. The
Group continued to pursue the “Daren (EA)”
spirit and strive for perfection of our products,
and continued to optimize the undertone taste,
giving the enjoyable sensation of “Bottoms-
up for the Nourishing Soup (TR &5 — B2
[£)” to our consumers. The Group has placed
intensive commercials on the first-tier satellite TV
stations and video hosting websites with the new
advertisement clip with a view to promote the
reputation of “Soup Daren (J5# A)”. On the
other hand, based on the detailed observation on
our consumers, and the promotion of the brand’s
notion of “Soup Makes Good Noodles ( #F4H;5 &
7E )" through buzz marketing tactics, the Group
conducted in-depth communication with our consumers, and
showed the brand’s care towards the community.

In order to meet the consumers’ demand in brand-oriented,
customized, diversified and high-end products, the Group has
introduced a series of innovative brands and formed a 2.0 brand
combination together with “Soup Daren (/5% A ) ”, among which
“The Champion (/@& ) " further cooperated with “China’s time-
honored brand (R EE F ) " “Mazilu (F F )" under the
brand positioning of “Famous Shop, Famous Noodles (% J& %
¥ ) ", and introduced gift set products, focusing on core cities and
the core flavor of “Lanzhou Beef Noodles ( B/ 4-A1%&) * which
form the solid basis for the brand’s development. Instant noodles
are associated with the negative image of being “unhealthy (1~
f#FE) ", “unnutritious (J8 &%) " and “unsafe (7% &) ". Under
such market environment, our “Light Noodle (#%5) ” products
revolutionize the consumers’ perceptions towards instant noodles,
and introduce the notion of a “Sophisticated and Simple Life
(FEEER AR ) 7 with little burden, by the characteristics of “no
preservatives added (R NNFFEE]) ", “no artificial colors added
(ERMATEZE)", “no traditional powder and sauce bags (£
BEHmE - EH)” and “vegetable infused noodles (TS )
of our products. The product is positioned within the RMB5 price-

% — ¥ E#E K AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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tag cup noodle group on the market which enjoys a promising
prospect. It is also the first brand among the instant noodles
segment to be packaged in couples’ cups, which attracted
the attention of young men and women, and was well received
once launched in the section of first-tier cities. In 2016, the
Group will enhance the promotion effort for the “Light Noodle
(##5)” brand in major cities across the country, so as to
bring an all new and innovative experience for consumers.

Troubled by the negative news of instant noodles, the
ever-changing consumer demands and the cross-field
competition from the emerging alternative dietary
products, the instant noodles industry
continues to decline in recent years and
is undergoing the difficult transitioning
period. Year 2016 is the first year of the
“Thirteenth Five-Year Plan (+=F)". The
upcoming “new norms (¥ & &) " of medium-
to-rapid economic growth and the state’s close
attention to the issue of food safety will bring new
market opportunities to the entire industry. As an industry
player, the Group always orients from the consumers’ interests
and takes food safety as its first priority to meet the increasing
consumer demands, and insists on innovative replacements, as
well as proactively contributes to the revival of the industry, and
to assist and lead the entire industry on to the next generation,
creating a new pattern of the instant noodles industry.

Beverages Business

During the Year, revenue from the Group’s beverages business
amounted to RMB14,051.1 million. The performance of each major
product line is described as follows:

Tea Drinks

Based on Nielsen’s data, the total sales volume of the beverage
industry as a whole increased by 1.2% in 2015 as compared with
the period in 2014, while the instant tea market (excluding milk tea)
remained sluggish, recording a year-on-year decrease of 0.7%.
The consumption trend continues to shift towards cool and healthy
beverages and bottled water. However, under the impact of the
slowdown of the overall economic growth, such growth has also
slowed down.

# — {2 B2 IR A BR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2015, the Group’s tea drinks business continued to build its
existing brands “Uni lce Tea (#—/K4I2%) " and “Uni Green Tea
(% —#kZ5) ”. Coupled with the outstanding performance of
the new product “Classmate Xiaoming (/N2 [RE) " the brand
structure supported by the three main pillars was formed. The total
revenue in 2015 amounted to RMB5,826.3 million,
a year-on-year increase of 5.4%, which outperformed the overall

representing

beverage sector and the tea drinks market, with its market share
increased to 24.8% in 2015.

“Classmate Xiaoming (/N F£ )" was launched on 18 March
2015, targeting the young consumer group born post-95 by
introducing a special drink that resonates with them and is delicious
and fun at the same time. In regards to
the product itself, the drink meets the
demand of the target consumers with its
unigue new packaging and refreshing and
tasty flavor. As to the marketing effort, it
was the sole sponsor of the TV show ‘I
Am Going to School (F 2= =20 ) ” first
aired in July, which complemented the
brand through an in-depth placement.
The brand also participated in a series
of promotional events such as the
package design competition for students,
theme video broadcasting and WeChat
expression packages with brand new
animation figures, in order to better
engage with the consumers, and to

efficiently enhance the brand reputation

7
H—4R Ak (DE) RBHRAS)
UNI-PRESIDENT ENTERPRISES (CHINA) INVESTMENT CO, LTD.

and recognition during the peak season to
boost drinks sales.

Uni Green Tea (£t —#%%%) " continues the brand’s philosophy of
“Experience the Nature (GR3T B#X)” and launched its integrated
promotion based on the “Cycling (§877) " experience which combined
virtual cycling activities with six cycling hot spots in reality, to introduce a
different kind of “Refreshing (¥78%) ” cycling experience to our consumers.
The brand also sponsored the popular variety shows on the Sohu online
video platform, so as to attract the attention of the young generation in
a more distinctive way. “Uni lce Tea (4 —7KATZS) " engaged the hot
teenage idol Kris Wu (= 75 .) as our new spokesman since March 2015

— e E hE R B R 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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who manifested the new slogan of “Uni Ice Tea (5 —/K41%%) 7, “Stay
Young Forever (F&ERFR) ”. The brand has also launched various
activities including the “Swipe Your Bottle and Get a Ride! ( %5 £ X EER
)" and “Reborn in a 2-D World (%
engage our consumers, which became a sensation on the Internet and

ZRJT) " to interact with and
successfully attracted the targeted young generation consumers.

In 2016, the Group’s tea drinks will continue to follow the strategy of
value-based marketing as the core. Facing the changes in the market
environment and consumers’ demands, our tea drinks business will
be supported by the main products “Uni lce Tea (% —K4IZE)”
and “Uni Green Tea (£t —#%%%) ", and the differentiated products,
i.e. “Classmate Xiaoming (/NERIZ)” and “TealLaTour (42Hi[El) 7,
the second high-end brand of western fruit tea launched in 2016,
will become the basis of our sales growth. The segmented product
structure, coupled with the accentuated brand image and innovation,
will enable us to face challenges head-on. “Uni lce Tea (45— /KATZS)
in 2016 has adopted a revolutionary new look to project a younger
and hipper brand image, and communicates through the channels
used by the youngsters born post-95, so as to attract attention of the
consumers and pull back the young consumers. While “Uni Green Tea
(8—#%25) " continues to improve its existing classic products, a
limited edition has been launched to create new brand messages and
highlight the distinction and quality of our products. The new product
“Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ F£) ” remains as a hit item and will go
all out to expand its coverage in 2016. The Group will launch another
new product “Liuliuda Tea (SEEWEZS) " to occupy the prosperous
and valuable lactobacillus market with a distinguished flavor, and rely
on its scarce resources to increase the media propaganda coverage
and promote brand reputation. The Group will also uses MicroBlogs,
WeChat and QQ Space to form an online culture precisely aimed at
the target groups.

In 2015, the juice sector recorded a revenue of RMB4,277.6
million, representing an increase of 8.6% as compared with
the corresponding period last year. The overall growth rate
outpaced the rest of the industry. Nielsen’s data indicates
that the market share of the Group’s juice went up from
13.4% in 2014 to 14.7% in 2015, representing an increase
of 1.3%.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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In 2015, “Haizhiyan (&2 % )" continued to follow
its notion of “Cooling You Down (B8R E:ZL) " and
launched the event “Cooling You Down: Enjoy Cruise
(OBRESZER - 15285 #5%2) ”. The Group cooperated
with the major media platform Youku to produce
the show “90s kids, Come for the Cruise Trip (F5
Jt90%% - MW IRERRTT) " to focus on in-depth
communication with the target consumers born

post-90 and emphasize the close relationship
between “Haizhiyan (82 %)” and the ocean,
where the two complement each other to
maximize the broadcasting effect. Based on
subject of interest of our consumers and their
routine hotspots, the Group has placed eye-
catching advertisements in several major cities which
incorporated strong visual images such as cruise tour landmarks
and oceanic subway trains, and has become the widespread
hot topic in town. “Haizhiyan (& 2 & )" was recognized as a
Groundbreaking Innovative Product in the Nielsen Fast Moving
Consumer Goods Market 2015, with the “Lemon (##15)” and
“Grapefruit (Fg4d) " flavors ranked number one in terms of market
share among the low-concentration juices categories respectively.
In 2016, the “Blackcurrant (B %)~ and “Peach (7KZE k) ”
flavors of “Haizhiyan (/8,2 F)” will be launched, giving new
choices and novelty to our consumers. Celebrity Boran Jing
(F 1548 ) has also signed on as the spokesman of the brand, thus
further enriching our broadcasting content and enhancing the effect
of our propaganda.

“Uni More Juice Series (#—2% 3/T)” maintained its notion of
“More Vitamin C, More Beauty (%C%JZ ) "and upheld the
principle of value-based marketing. In 2015, the brand renewed
its contract with Jang Keun-Suk (5R4#278), dubbed “Asian
Prince”, and famous Korean actress Park Shin Hye (fMZE)
and employed Chinese zodiac animals as signs on the bottle and
expressed the beautiful and humorous ideas through different facial
expressions of the spokespersons, and popularizes the brand in
a youth manner. In 2016, “Uni More Juice Series (£i—% 825t)”
focuses on the operation of the brand “More Orange Juice ( B #%&
%)”, and maintained the idea of “beauty (JZ52) ” in expanding
the brand series horizontally. The brand will launch new products
of orange flavor equipped with innovative technologies and
fashionable packaging to project a younger image of the brand.
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In 2015, “Seasonal Drinks (fX& M=) "
closely followed the seasonal growth pattern
of “Pears (%) ",

celebrated the pear flower festival in spring

For marketing events, it

and held pear tree adoption and pear harvest
events in fall to achieve close interaction with
consumers. In 2016, “Seasonal Drinks ( #82

Z=) " wil focus on upgrade of packaging,
and will continue to improve the uniqueness

.......
‘‘‘‘‘‘
......

of the stewing techniques and demonstrate
its efforts in material selection. Meanwhile,

@#»ﬁa &

through comprehensive integrated online

74y s hroadcasting, the Group will launch sales

events that warm people’s heart, so as to establish a warm
and reliable brand image.

In April 2015, the Group introduced two new products under the
brand “Ruyin (Z18X) " room-temperature beverages to the market:
“White Fungus with Snow Pear (R E 5%) " and “Winter Melon
& Tartary Buckwheat (% /I{/N%) ”. In November 2015, it further
introduced hot drinks series product “Stewed Pear with White Fungus
Flavor Juice (FL4FEZY) ”, “Pomelo with Honey (1 R 3£48) ” and
“Brown Sugar with Hot Ginger (& 7ER) ” which rapidly expanded
and occupied a share in the market of warm beverages for winter. It
insists on using the Chinese way to process the natively grown fruits.
During the bottle label and packaging design creativity event “China
on Bottle (JE_EAED) ”, it communicated with consumers about the
Chinese culture and established a brand image of “Chinese-style Fruit
Drink (FR =X Sk ) ” which received attention of consumers.

In 2016, the juice sector will continue its path of innovation. The
main product “Haizhiyan (825 )" will be available in more
flavors. The “More Juice (2 1) " brand will launch the “Orange

Plus (#PLUS) ” series with the spotlight on the “Orange + Lime
SE B ER) " products.
)" will be constantly upgraded

+ Orange and Grapefruit Pulp (1% +
“Seasonal Drinks (£t /M=
to strive internal and external beauty, in order to convey a
refreshing and energetic feeling to the consumers. In terms

of different juice concentration and packaging material, the

Group will start afresh in 2016, and introduce “Keep Sweet
(1FE% )" in bottle-can containers. In addition, 100%
juice products in Tetra Pak packaging will be added to the
brand “Yishang (1€ ) . It meets the demands of family and

personal meals in different occasions and completes the Group’s

product strategy.

5 — 37 B2 B A BR 2 & Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Milk Tea

ERHZERETR 2015FEREBNMAMIHMR  Nielsen’s data shows that sales of the entire milk tea market

BERRE20.2% HERBEZRABLES

declined by 20.2% in 2015 with the shift between types of

EABBEURANEBRLT AEBHEKE  goods being consumed. Under the difficult situation of the macro
HEANE FEMEERE7.8% AELIEE  envionment, the Group’s milk tea sector outperformed the industry

5.6[EBADH REMS

F—EEBMAL-

with a market share of 67.8% of the year, representing an increase

of 5.6 percentage points, as compared with the corresponding

period last year, playing the advantageous role as number one in

the market.
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In 2015, the Group insisted on its core ideas of
communication with consumers. It took advantage
of the high reputation of “Assam (FIIFEM) ” milk
tea and integrated various flavors into the brand
of “Uni Assam (£ —FFE4) ”. It introduced the
rainbow bottles derived from the brand’s story,
communicated with the youth born post-90 and
strengthened the brand image and the brand’s
unigueness. It promoted the idea of “Factor and
Image of Good Mood (#F D iEEEF %K) " and
demonstrated “Good Mood Follows You ( &F 2
S EMR) " together with its

- spokesperson Amber Kuo (5B
S%2) . It associated the brand
image of “Assam (FFEM) ” milk
tea with good mood through the

P

optimal advertisement mix on
China Central TV and satellite TV
stations. With its soft placement

B
4
5
s
2

in the online TV series “Detective
Di Renjie (B EFEMIZH) " and

its sponsorship on the show

“I Am Going to School (FZx %M )", and a series of events
including cooperation with the Communist Youth League of China
and universities, it closely interacted with consumers.

% — 1> % B2 R B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In September 2015, the Group introduced “Little Assam Milk Tea
(PBEM /N ZE) " as an upgraded sub-brand of “Assam (B &
#) ”. The cute packaging design and carefully selected materials
were recognized and appreciated by the consumers as soon as it
was first launched on the market. The target consumer group of
“Little Assam Milk Tea (P EE#/NGIZE) 7 is the independent yet
sociable young people born post-90. Through cooperation with
Snoopy’s 65th Anniversary Movie, it introduced the brand idea of
“Going Back to the Childhood of Milk Tea ( B B FZS /N (&) 7. In
2016, “Little Assam Milk Tea ( FIBEM/NFIZL) " will strengthen the
communication with consumers and promote the brand reputation
through the theme of the year “Going Back to the Childhood of Milk
Tea (B ZIFHZ /N AR) 7.

In 2016, the Group’s milk tea sector will continue to promote
its product competency and propaganda capacity. Apart from
optimization of present packaging, it will also introduce customized
new products that meet the demands of consumers from the new
generation. It will continue to communicate to the consumers the
image of “Good Mood Factor (#f/:EFEF) " and build up the
product image of “Assam (P EE#) " milk tea which brings good
mood, and solidify its number one status in the milk tea market and
further expand the scale of the milk tea market.

Coffee

As the nation’s flavor preference, drinking habit
and understanding towards coffee changes, the
demands on coffee’s quality and fine categorization
have become more and more prominent. The
developing trend for instant coffee is to become
more youth-friendly and to improve its quality. In
order to grasp this opportunity, the Group deployed
a dual-brand strategy in 2015. In addition to
the existing “A-Ha (F£"5) ", it introduced a new
brand “Lento (BAZ%) " targeted at high-end coffee
lovers which helped the Group to better meet the
demands of different target groups.

# — {2 B2 IR A PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2015, “A-Ha (#mB)”
transformation into a youth friendly brand. It fits

focused on the

into the present day young people’s lifestyle with
a passion of communication and socialization,
and introduced the brand through “drinking and
chatting”. It promotes the brand idea of “Drinking
the Right Flavor and Chatting Happily ( %R 1§
o R D)
young people. Based on the new positioning of
the brand, “A-Ha (#£RM) " sponsored the second

S AN

season of “Let’s Talk (& é& &) ”, the most popular

which became popular among the

online discussion show in 2015. The slogan “Chat
Happily After Drinking A-Ha ("8 7 1 82 fa1 R B0 R 60 FERS UNBE) ” has
become popular among the young people. The new product series
introduced in July 2015, “Hey Cool” and “Hey Smooth” met the
demands of certain youngsters for original and cool taste of coffee
as they contain low sugar, low fat and no added fragrance. In 2016,
“A-Ha (HERS) " will further increase its influence on the young
people by illustrating and contextualizing “drinking and chatting (
K7 ) " scenarios, and will continue to sponsor the third season
of “Let’s Talk (F#E&%) ” to jointly build the brand image.

“Lento (BAZ%) " is targeted at people with higher ability to
appreciate and taste coffee. With high technology, high quality and
high level of convenience as its core advantages, the brand meets
the consumer demand under different drinking circumstances with
a diverse range of products. It is an instant coffee product made
from 100% virgin extraction and refrigerated Australian condensed
milk. “Lento (BAZ%) " also introduced hanging-drip coffee bags
made from single coffee beans, which aimed to bring consumers a
fresher and high quality coffee experience.

With exacerbation of environmental pollution and heightened health
awareness, the growth rate of bottled water sales was 5.1%,
ranked number two among all soft drinks and natural mineral water
achieved two digits growth rate in 2015, as demonstrated by
Nielsen’s data. This indicates that the future bottled water market
will develop along the line of high-end natural mineral water.
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Based on the market trend, the Group focused on operation of the
two major brands, “ALKAQUA (E#5) " and “Bama Quan (2§
) 7. In 2015, the Group’s “ALKAQUA ( E#%) ” advertisement had
the theme “Good Feeling is Bubbling,
Alkaqua is the Match (4F R 4E § i -
B FERET) " and highlighted the
idea of “Good Water, Unique Style (#f
KBEBMF)". In order to attract the
attention of more young consumers,
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the advertisement has been placed in
the hot online TV series “The Lost Tomb
(BESE0) "with decent effects.
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Based on Nielsen’s data, sales of medium and high priced water
have grown significantly. Hence, bottled water from better places
of origin and with higher value is becoming more and more popular
among consumers. In 2016, the Group will continue to promote the
two major places of origin of high quality water: Bama, Guangxi,
the “Longevity Village of the World (tt R EE 2 48) ”; and Antu,
Changbai Mountain, “The Original Town of Mineral Water in
China (P EIfER /K Z48) ”. The Group will endeavor to provide
consumers with better and healthier natural mineral water products.
Meanwhile, in the aspect of marketing promotion, Mr. Wang Kai
(E£3L) will be invited as the spokesperson for the main brand
“ALKAQUA (E#5) " to enhance the brand’s reputation and image.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The research center of the Group maintains its innovative
technology advantage within the industry and is striving to develop
products with high additional values to drive up consumers’
demand. In order to protect its core technologies and its
intellectual properties, as of December 2015, the research center
owns 22 authorized patents and has filed the application for 36
patents applications which create a protection of its technological
advantage.

The food research team maintains the notion of technological
innovation. In August 2015, the “Light Noodle (¥ #7) ” series was
officially launched on the market. The series is developed based
on the idea of “Light Diet and Low Burden (&K &)~ and

# — {2 B2 IR A PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 F#§
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targets at the high-end cup noodles market for the white-collar
consumer group. The noodle is made out of natural materials such
as egg powder, carrot juice and green tea powder to maintain both
the taste and the nutrition of the products. The soup is made from
refined stew soup packs (& =58 ), served with abundant
vegetables. Each cup of noodle contains 330 calories, which lower
the burden of consumption for the consumers.

The tea team developed the “Classmate Xiaoming (/NER£)”
series in 2015 which was aimed at the demand of young people.
With the technique of “Cold Tea without Bitterness (/% &
)", the product is fresh, mellow and not bitter. The unique
flavor matched with distinctive packaging designs won support of
consumers, thus making the product a paradigm of the Group’s
youth-friendly and fashionable products.

In the aspect of juice, “Ruyin (Z1#X) " is made out of traditional
Chinese ingredients following the Chinese ways of tea making. Its
ingredient selection, condiments and crafts meet the preference
of the Chinese better. After launching “Winter Melon & Tartary
Buckwheat (£ I{/\%& ) ” and “White Fungus with Snow Pear
(FABERR) 7, it also launched the series of winter warm drinks
targeted on the beverage market in the winter, including “Stewed
Pear with White Fungus Flavor Juice (FL47F53%) ", “Brown Sugar
with Hot Ginger (EBE7ER) ” and “Pomelo with Honey (4R 3
&) ", which bring warmth to consumers in the cold winter. As
to domestic consumers’ demand for healthy and pure fruit and
vegetable juices, “Wei Shi Ke (#BF %)) has mixed up more
than 7 kinds of fruits and vegetables in producing 100% fruit and
vegetable juice products for each of the 3 daily meals: “Refreshing
(E2) ", “Balanced (#7)” and “Clear (j&)”. The juices with rich
vitamins and fiber serve as “micro-meals ({#1%&) ” for each meal,
supplementing the nutrition for busy white-collar people.

The milk tea market remained shrinking in 2015. The consumers are
gradually changing their demands for milk teas. The fresh and healthy
milk teas are becoming more popular among white-collar people. The
research teams responded to the new trend of the milk tea market and
launched the “Simple Milk+Tea (I EE#1+£%) ”, the “Assam Small Milk
Tea (assamPaEEH - /NMIZL)”. The two flavors, i.e. “Xiao Zhen (/NE ) ”
and “Xiao Ye (/M) ” are made from Australian refrigerated milk. The
“Pure Milk (41 45HY4) ” makes the “Smooth Tea (EEEZ K45 ) ” which
restores the fresh and fragrant milk flavors with low sugar and low fat
to give a light taste and low burden, and has become the dominant
brand within the milk tea market.
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In recent years, the coffee market has become diversified. The
research team of the Group has deliberately selected Colombian
coffee beans to make the “A-Ha (¥ )" and “Hey” series of
coffee with low sugar and low fat and no flavor additives. With
perfect match of deeply-baked beans and lightly-bake beans, the
coffee is fragrant, clear and tasty.

The Group insists on the principle of “Good Quality, Good Faith,
Good Service and Fair Price (RE &5 Aif  RET EBHE A
&) " and provides safe, healthy and delicious food to consumers.
In order to enhance the good safety management system, the
Group have established the Food Safety Committee and the Food
Safety Center dedicated to establish the food safety system,
produce food safety policies, upgrade food risk assessments,
warning and monitoring and ensure food safety. In charge of the
Group’s quality management, it produces and implements quality
policies and ensures product quality.

The Group retains a proper regulatory mechanism for the supply
chain of raw materials. It focuses on enhancing safety management
of the food source from the supply chain as well as safety
monitoring of finished food products. It implements review of
food safety qualification, on-spot examination of suppliers’ food
safety and establishes food safety monitoring mechanism for raw
materials in order to ensure food quality safety monitoring from
the source of the supply chain. It establishes factory qualification
review and on-spot assessment mechanism. Finished products are
released from factory upon strict enforcement of testing. The food
safety projects for all products are closely monitored in order to

ensure the safety and delicacy of the Group’s products.

The Group proactively carries out source management of supplies.
In addition to supplier training, it also introduces third party
professional organizations to review the suppliers and help them
to establish effective food safety and quality control system. The
Group comprehensively introduces food safety protection scheme
from product design to production and sales in order to ensure the

safety and health of consumers.

The Group pays close attention to various food safety incidents
and timely conducts risk assessments. While improving its food
safety management system, it eliminates similar raw materials and
finished products related to those involved in incidents. It actively

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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participates in relevant standards setting or amendments, gathers
and publishes food safety laws and regulations as well as domestic
and foreign food safety information to enhance awareness of food
safety of the Group, and facilitates strict enforcement of food safety
provisions and standards in order to ensure consumers’ interests.

The Food Safety Testing Center under the Group passes the
professional review of China National Accreditation Service
for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS”) every year since 2005.
So far 165 items have passed testing. Meanwhile it combines
the resources of laboratory of each subsidiary and external
testing institutions to cover the testing requirements. It provides
professional and authoritative testing services and technical
supports for the Group to ensure food safety.

As of the end of 2015, 30 subsidiaries of the Group have passed
ISO9001 Quality Management System, and 27 have passed
ISO22000 Food Safety Management System. These certifications
and honors require the Group to constantly improve its food safety
and quality ensuring systems and enhance its ability to ensure food
safety. Meanwhile, it also indicates that the Group not only provides
delicious products to consumers, but also healthy and safety food.
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The Group is committed to focus on its operation, and will make
continuous effort in product R&D and innovation, as well as
building up brand value and establishment of sales channels, in the
expectation to meet diverse demands of consumers and encourage
growth of the corporation, so as to maximize profit. In addition to
its own productivity, in light of centralizing the usage of resources
for maximum efficiency, the Group has been cooperating with
professional beverage original equipment manufacturer (‘OEM”)
factories (including professional OEM manufacturers who are
external independent third parties and connected corporations) to
form strategic alliances. As a result, on top of our basic productivity,
the Group has flexibility in adjusting its productivity by outsourcing
production, so that the Group’s resources can be fully and most
efficiently employed on our key projects.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and time deposits
of RMB2,915.1 million (31 December 2014: RMB2,128.1 million),
among which 78.7% were denominated in Renminbi and 21.0%
were denominated in United States dollars, restricted bank deposit
of RMB4.2 million (31 December 2014: Nil). During the Year, the
Group mainly financed its working capital and capital expenditure
by internally generated cash flows, credit facilities from principal
bankers and the funds raised by issues of corporate bonds. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total financial liabilities was
RMB4,254.3 million (31 December 2014: RMB5,836.4 million),
decreased by 27.1%, among which 62.6% were repayable over
one year. 90.8% of the total financial liabilities were denominated
in Renminbi and the remaining 9.2% was denominated in United
States dollars. The net cash position in United States dollars after
deduction of liability in United States dollar is USD183.8 million. As
at 31 December 2015, all of the Group’s financial liabilities bear
floating interest rates, save for the RMB1,000 million notes due
2016, the RMB1,000 million notes due 2017, the RMB65 million
bank borrowings due 2017, the RMB500 million notes due 2017
and the RMB500 million notes due 2019, which were at fixed
interest rates of 3.5%, 3.6%, 3.4%,
respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any

3.5% and 3.9% per annum

secured bank borrowings (31 December 2014: Nil).
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The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. Taiwan
Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency in Taiwan, gave a
long term credit rating of twAA- to the Group, with “stable” rating
outlook on the Group’s long term credit rating.
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As at 31 December
2015 2014
ARB T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Total borrowings 4,254,316 5,836,368
Less: cash and time deposits (2,915,109) (2,128,121)
Net debt 1,339,207 3,708,247
Total equity 11,602,403 10,836,738
Total capital 12,941,610 14,544,985
Gearing ratio (Note) 10.35% 25.50%
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Note: The gearing ratio is computed as the net debt divided by the sum of
total equity and net debt.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a net decrease
in cash and cash equivalents of RMB330.7 million, comprising
net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB3,471.4 million,
net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB1,717.1 million
and net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB2,098.9
million. The net cash outflow from investing activities was mainly
applied to the establishment of new production base for beverage
businesses, purchase of machinery and equipment to produce
new products, investments in new research and development
equipment, financial products, etc. During the Year, the Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to RMB1,400.8 million (31 December
2014: RMB3,345.7 million).
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Sales to most customers are made on a delivery on payment
basis. Trade receivables are generated from credit sales to credit
customers from modern channels (including but not limited to food
and groceries stores, stalls and department stores) with credit
terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During the Year, as the
number of our credit sales clients increased, net trade receivables
increased by RMB41.8 million to RMB529.2 million (31 December
2014: RMB487.4 million).

The Group’s trade payables mainly arose from credit purchase of
raw materials, and the inventories mainly comprised raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods and low-value consumables.
As sales of the finished products continued its good run, the
Group increased its inventories of raw materials for production
in preparation of the Lunar New Year, resulting in an increase
in trade payables by RMB174.8 million to RMB1,229.0 million
(81 December 2014: RMB1,054.2 million), while the inventories
increased by RMB238.4 million from the last corresponding period
to RMB1,367.7 million (31 December 2014: RMB1,129.3 million).
The following table sets out the major turnover days during the year
ended 31 December in the past 2 years.

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
FEWE 5 RN EAEXE Trade receivables turnover days 8 8
FEEEXE Inventories turnover days 32 31
BB SR EE X Trade payables turnover days 30 30
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The Group adhered to the principle of financial prudence. It
sought to control risk variables and moved forward prudently by
moderately adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according
to market condition, and made appropriate capital expenditures
to optimize and expand the basic infrastructure. The Group’s
finance department has formulated financial risk management
policies based on the policies and procedures approved by the
Board and guided by the executive directors. These policies are
reviewed by the Group’s internal audit department regularly. The
Group’s financial policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate
and exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial
position, as well as minimizing the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralized financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, to strengthen regional concentration
of transactional working region, improve work efficiency and
operational focus and strengthen regional financial analysis
functions, the Group has established a regional finance center and
a regional settlement center in the Southern and Eastern china
regions in 2015, with a view to improving capital efficiency and
accounting treatment effectiveness.

It is the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in any
highly leveraged or speculative derivative products and not to invest
the working capital in financial products with significant underlying
leverage or risk, including hedge funds or similar instruments. The
Group continued to adopt a conservative approach to financial risk
management with no significant borrowings during the Year.
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Most of the Group’s currency of receipt and payment is
denominated in Renminbi since majority of its revenues are derived
from operations in China. The Group may be exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future borrowings from overseas and
some of its recognized assets or liabilities, such as cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings, which are denominated in other
currencies. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
outside China, when appropriate, for risk management and to
control the Group’s assets and liabilities when interest or exchange
rates are uncertain or fluctuating, or whenever suitable.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2015.

In 2016, the Group will continue to serve the long-term interest of
its shareholders. Facing the quick transformation of consumption,
the Group understands the market trend and strives to win support
of consumers with differentiated, high-quality and fashionable
products and seize opportunities to expand the market size of
the Group. The Group will strictly enforce quality control at each
stage to ensure the products meet the safety standard. Despite
the slowing economic growth, the Group will efficiently utilize
resources and increase business earnings to create higher value for
shareholders.
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On 31 December 2015, the Group has a total of 33,619
employees. Facing the enormous commercial opportunities in the
PRC’s beverage and food market, the Group will continue to recruit
professional talents. On selection and retention of personnel, the
Group has adopted a more practical and efficient way to meet the
demand for human resources. The Group provides the new entry-
level employees with timely training and humanitarian care to let
them quickly adapt to the group. Meanwhile, the Group both openly
promotes outstanding employees internally and recruits outstanding
talents externally to maintain competency of the Group. It nourishes
talents for companies’ senior positions through advanced training,
organized position rotation and continued education to meet the
Group’s demand for advanced personnel.

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on performance,
qualification and ability of its employees and directors, together
with comparable market data and the Group’s performance. As
to the Group’s remuneration policies, the Group has entered into
individual employment contracts with its employees involving
salary, allowance, social welfare, employee benefit, work safety,
healthy environment, obligation of keeping commercial secret and
termination conditions. Other than the employment contracts with
intermediate and senior management personnel, such employment
contract has a term for 1 to 3 years. The probationary period for
new employees is 2 months.

This year, the total employee cost (including Director’s fees) is
RMB3,164.7 million (2014: RMB3,028.7 million).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales
of beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2015 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 83 of the annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBS3.864 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of RMB166.9 million. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 85 of the annual report and Note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB6,344,266,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB147,422 (2014: RMB10,010,000).

% — ¥ E#E K AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Lin Lung-Yi
(retired with effect from 15 May 2015)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Mr. Chen Sun-Te
Mr. Chen Johnny
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2015)
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu
(retired with effect from 15 May 2015)
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. Each of Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election. There is no service contract entered into
between each of Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan
Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter and the Company which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Chen Johnny, who was appointed with effect from 1 December
2015, shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, and being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 53 to 57 of
the annual report.
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Name of Director

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

20154

12A31H

ZERBD L

¥ NN Percentage of

ZEREE shareholding

Number of as at

514 ordinary shares 31 December
Capacity of the Company 2015
(BE49)

(Approximate)

Hou Jung-Lung
TR [E
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Beneficial owner 60,000 0.00%

ExmEBAA

% — ¥ E#E K AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Name of corporation and
name of its relevant shareholder

B—ERD
BRDA

Uni-President

Corporation*
Lo Chih-Hsien

B AR
Personal
Interest

4,069,095

Br ESCATHE A SN 1R2015F 123318 - i
BARRESHFTETHABHB E[ALHE
RARRFIRBHREIEGRGIE352(6H E
GFzEZMA KRB EESFAZEME AR
A KRB R AT 2 AR B S E AT A MR
(ERRBHFREEEFEXVE) BRMD - 48

AR S ER SRR -

RDEE
Number of shares

2015

12A31H

185% ZERBSH®

U Fzs Percentage of
(TR £ shareholding
Interest of NEER as at
child under Corporate #5t 31 December
18 or spouse Interest Total 2015
(#E4)

(Approximate)

93,182,918 - 97,242,013 1.71%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Equity-linked Agreements
— Share Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors below, none
of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance to
which the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

% — ¥ E#E R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Name

Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®
m—EERNERLDF

Cayman President Holdings Ltd.

B

AR F]3,046,953,9838 2 15 (AR5 ] ) & & -

3,044,508,000% % 1 F Cayman President Holdings
Ltd. ([Cayman President | - i — ¥R H BR A
A(F—DED 2 REEZEMNBRATEAE -

M2,445,983 8% % {7 B President (BVI) International
Investment Holdings Ltd. ([President (BVI)] * & —
EMEREII7TNER L —KAE)FE-
It REBEIHFZRAEGR S —EERAD IR
Cayman President X2 President (BVI)# & 2 FT A % %
AR -

B Eat B 8B E AN 201512 A31 8 @ &
HAthE ZRRE R A TRA R B AR5 ok 48 B8 A%
MHEEEZIAE  TEBERBREBEESFR
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As at 31 December 2015, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

720155
12A31H
ZERES K
KATA Percentage of
ZBERHAE shareholding
Number of as at
5% ordinary shares 31 December
Capacity of the Company 2015
(BE49)
(Approximate)
Interest of controlled 3,046,953,983 70.54%
corporations (Note)
ZPEHlEE R (BiEE)
Beneficial owner 3,044,508,000 70.49%
EmEA A
Note:

Out of 3,046,953,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”), 3,044,508,000
Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman President”),
which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation* (“UPE”) and 2,445,983 Shares were held by President
(BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd. (“President (BVI)”), which is
indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%. Accordingly, UPE was deemed to
be interested in all the Shares respectively held by Cayman President and
President (BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Other Connected Transactions” of this Report
of the Directors, (i) no contract of significance was entered into by,
and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during
the Year; and (i) there is no contract of significance in relation to
provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
no permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or
directors of any associated company of the Company (if made by
the Company).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

% — 1> % B #% 5 BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a new
framework sales agreement (the “New Framework Sales
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell or procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to UPE Group certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery
products and such other products as may be agreed by the
Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the
sales transactions contemplated under the New Framework
Sales Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the
New Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a new
framework purchase agreement (the “New Framework
Purchase Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to purchase or procure the purchase
of, on a non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw
materials, packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost
consumables and such other goods as may be agreed by
the Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2017. The pricing basis and the other terms
of the purchase transactions contemplated under the New
Framework Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to the Group by independent third parties
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the New Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 October
2014, 23 December 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 5 December 2014.
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On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a new
framework logistics service agreement (the “New Framework
Logistics Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which
UPE agreed to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-
exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
service (including, but not limited to, storage and design of,
and the provision of support service to, logistics application
systems and such other logistics related ancillary and support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
pricing basis and the other terms of the transportation and
logistics service transactions contemplated under the New
Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined
in accordance with the internal control procedures of the
Group, which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to
the Group than those offered by independent third parties
suppliers to the Group in comparable transactions of the
same period. Further details of the New Framework Logistics
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 October 2014.

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a new
framework technical support service agreement (the “New
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide or
procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE
Group technical support services (including, but not limited
to, the human resources management services and such
other technical support services as may be agreed by the
Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the
technical support service transactions contemplated under
the New Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to independent
third parties by the Group in comparable transactions of
the same period. Further details of the New Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.
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The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”)
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
pursuant to the New Framework Sales Agreement, the
New Framework Purchase Agreement, the New Framework
Logistics Service Agreement and the New Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the
“New CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

ERLE
Actual
x5 FiEERER S R Transaction FELR
Transaction New CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
(AR¥BE&T) (AR¥B&T)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
TIEREEHE New Framework Sales Agreement
BIHEBE Total sales value 197.8 700.0
FTIERREE W & New Framework Purchase Agreement
RIRIEEAE Total purchase value 3,601.3 5,700.0
FERM R RS New Framework Logistics Service Agreement
B HEE Total transaction value 13.5 40.6

HiERFIM B RIE %% New Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
B HEE Total transaction value 62.2 103.0
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions pursuant to the New CCT Agreements
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were in
accordance with the relevant New CCT Agreements and the
pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the
Listing Rules 14A.56.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 37(b) and Note
37(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered between the Company and UPE
on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of
the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)).

% — 1> % 7 Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, directors
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
under the Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000 shares of
the Company, representing 10% of the total number of shares
issued by the Company as at 17 December 2007 (i.e. the listing
date of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange) and
approximately 8.17% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the annual report. Unless approved by shareholders
of the Company in the manner as set out in the Scheme, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options to granted to each eligible person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant of the
option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than being
the highest of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet of the shares on the date of grant of the option; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company. No amount will be
payable for the acceptance of an option.

Unless otherwise specified by the Board in the offer, the options
granted under the Scheme shall generally be vested in five
tranches with each of the 20% of the options vested on the first,
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the date of grant
respectively. An option may be exercised to the extent that it has
vested and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met. The option period will not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant.
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Report of the Directors

As at 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015, there was no
outstanding share option. No share option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. The Scheme
will remain in force until 16 December 2017 unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with the management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements for the Year and has recommended their adoption by
the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this report of the Directors.

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to beverages and instant
noodles business and some are from external sources. Major risks
are summarized below.

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. Consumer preferences
change and the Company’s failure to anticipate, identify or
react to these changes could result in reduced demand for
the Group’s products, which would, in turn, cause excess
inventory levels and lower sales volume. The Group will
continuously introduce new products throughout the season
and will further shorten the product development cycle
in order to improve our portfolio of products and satisfy
consumers’ changing preferences.

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to a
significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish its
products from those of the Group’s competitors by providing
high quality products at reasonable prices that appeal to
consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s competitors
have varying abilities to withstand changes in market
conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors have larger
market shares in the PRC in respect to beverages or instant
noodles products, have operated their respective businesses
longer than the Group has, have wider geographical coverage
for its products and/or stronger distribution networks in
the PRC, may have substantially greater financial and other
resources than the Group has and may be better established
in the market.
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The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third party or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third party
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable in the future to reach agreement upon
reasonable terms with them in relation to such continued
supply, the Group may be unable to find a comparable
substitute supplier of packaging materials, which may lead
to delays in the delivery of its products to customers. Such
delays may affect the Group’s results of operations.

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue
and operating income for its beverage and instant noodle
products. The Group generally records lower turnover for its
beverage products during the fourth quarter, while turnover
for its instant noodle products is generally lower during the
second quarter. The seasonal nature of the Group’s products
causes specific production lines to operate at uneven levels.
Sales and operating results for any particular period will not
necessarily be indicative of the Group’s results for the full
year or future periods. Cold weather conditions in the areas
in which our suppliers and customers are located could
adversely affect our beverages sales results and financial
condition.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitoring their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
top employees for vacant positions and attract qualified
candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our suppliers and take great care to ensure that
they understand our commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, we carefully select our suppliers in conformity with
the food safety requirements of “ three lines of defense “ (i.e
qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
the extent that those products are of comparable nature,
quality, quantity and condition via open tender.
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We sell our products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like we are
business partners with a same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. We require our distributors and sub-distributors to
comply with our policies, including but not limited to product
retail selling price, promotional activities and use of our
system.

We are committed to offer taste, differentiated and trendy
products to our customers. The Group provides safe, healthy
and delicious beverages and instant noodles to consumers.
We also stay connected with our customers to keep abreast
of the changing consumer preference through various
channels like the company’s website, customer’s hotline,
marketing materials and social media.

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our
business, it is the responsibility of each of us. We initiate and
strive to minimize our environmental impact by using water-
saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging recycle of
office supplies and other materials. We also require factories of
our original equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the PRC
regulators.

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December
2015 and up to the date of this report, we have complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 July 2012, on 18 July 2012, the Company (as borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks
in respect of a revolving facility for US$170 million (the “USD
Agreement”) with the drawdown period of five years from the
date of first drawdown i.e. to be expired on 23 August 2017
(the “July 2012 Facility Agreement”).

Pursuant to the July 2012 Facility Agreement, UPE has
executed a letter of support (the “Letter of Support”) in which
it undertook to the banks that, among others, it should,
directly or indirectly, hold not less than 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company during the continuance of the
July 2012 Facility Agreement. Under the July 2012 Facility
Agreement, the Company has also undertaken to ensure that
UPE shall, directly or indirectly, hold not less than 51% of the
issued share capital of the Company during the continuance
of the July 2012 Facility Agreement.

A breach of the undertakings in the Letter of Support or any
of the undertakings given by the Company under the July
2012 Facility Agreement may constitute an event of default of
the July 2012 Facility Agreement and the lenders of the July
2012 Facility Agreement has the right to terminate the July
2012 Facility Agreement and all loans together with accrued
interest and any other amounts accrued under the July
2012 Facility Agreement shall become immediately due and
payable.

During the Year, the entire facility under the July 2012 Facility
Agreement has been cancelled upon the request by the
Company.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 August 2012, on 15 August 2012, the Company (as
borrower) entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) relating to a revolving facility in an aggregate
amount of US$30 million (the “Facility”) with a syndicate of
banks (revised to US$50 million on 12 August 2013). The
original maturity date of the Facility was the date falling 365
days after the date of the Facility Agreement. As disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 12 August 2013,
12 August 2014 and 14 August 2015, the Company (as
borrower) entered into amendment agreements including the
third amendment agreement (“Third Amendment Agreement”)
to the Facility Agreement (as amended and supplemented
from time to time) with the original parties thereto, pursuant
to which, among other matters, () the maturity date of the
Facility has been fixed at a date falling 365 days from the date
of drawdown under the Third Amendment Agreement; and
(i) the amount of the Facility has been revised from US$50
million to US$30 million.

The Facility Agreement (as amended and supplemented
from time to time) is also amended by the Third Amendment
Agreement that the Company has undertaken to procure UPE
to ensure its shares shall remain listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and shall not be suspended from trading thereon
for any period of more than three consecutive trading days.
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A breach of such undertaking will constitute an event of
default under the Facility Agreement and the majority lenders
may cancel their commitments of the loan; and/or declare
that all or part of the loans, together with accrued interest,
and all or any other amounts accrued or outstanding be
immediately due and payable.

As at 16 February 2016, the Company has not requested
or made any drawdown. The available Facility has been
immediately and automatically cancelled on the expiry of the
availability period.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman
Taipei, Taiwan

18 March 2016

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (&% %), aged 59, is our chairman and
executive director. Mr. Lo is also a director and/or the chairman of
the board of directors of most of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in September 1998 and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry and is currently a chairman of President Chain
Store Corporation (£t —HBE KB AR A F), Ton Vi Industrial
Corp. (Fi—BERKMHBEMRZAE]) and TTET Union Corporation ( X
S AR AT, and the vice-chairman of Prince Housing &
Development Corp. ( K FEFZRFMERMDBRAF), al of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also a
director of ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & /& E DB R A7) and
Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (B F1TIRHER AR, a
company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also

the chairman and general manager of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation (# — 1t Z & H B R A7) (‘UPE"), the substantial
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)), and a
director of 116 companies associated with UPE and its subsidiaries
(excluding the Group) (collectively, “UPE Group”). Mr. Lo holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
California, Los Angeles, U.S.A. He is the son-in-law of Mr. Kao
Chin-Yen who is the honorary chairman of UPE.

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (£ %), aged 51, was appointed as
our president and executive director in September 2011. Mr.
Hou is also a director and/or the general manager of most of the
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hou joined UPE
Group in February 1993 and has acted as manager of a branch
of Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp. (BN & — %A R
X)), deputy general manager and head of sales department of
Zhuhai Kirin President Brewery Co., Ltd. (Zk/& B4 — 2B A
RAd]), general manager of Beijing President Enterprises Drinks
Co., Ltd. (dt =& — & AR 2 F)) and head of human resources
and general manager of the market planning office of Uni-President
TE(PE)KRESR

[R/AA]). Mr. Hou has over 23 years of experience in the food

Enterprises (China) Investments Ltd. (%5 —

and beverage industry and holds a master’s degree in executive
business administration from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China.
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Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREl/&) , aged 47, is our executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in May 2011. Mr. Chen also acts as a director and/or
supervisor of all of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
PRC. Mr. Chen is also the supervisor of United Advisor Venture
Management Co., Ltd. (#f/)N TXRE R EELI XKL EEEERAA])
and Min Fu Management Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (R E
& ( 2/8)BRAR]), in which the Group holds 50% interests,
and a director of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Co., Ltd. (23ET%&
SEINILERMDBR AT ), acompany in which the Group has an
interest. Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November 1997 to April
2011 and has over 19 years of experience in financial management.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (#5%%), aged 58, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Su joined the Group in August 2007. He joined UPE
Group in August 2000. He is currently the vice-president of UPE
and a director of President Chain Store Corporation ( 45— A%
AR AA) and ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & & #ERMDER A
Al) , all of which are members of UPE Group and are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Su is also a director of
24 members of UPE Group. He has over 30 years of experience in
banking and financial management. Before joining UPE Group, he
was the vice-president of the Taipei branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was
the financial specialist of Seibu Department Store in Tokyo, Japan
in 1988 and the senior specialist of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in
Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a master of business administration
degree from the University of lowa.
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Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (fREE{®), aged 61, was appointed as our
independent non-executive director in August 2007. Mr. Chen
has over 32 years of experience in the banking and financial
industry and is currently the Chairman of Zoyi Capital Ltd. He is
also an independent director of China Telecom Corporation, China
Electronics Corporation, and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd. and also
the director of Taipei Fubon Bank and Winstek Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to that, Mr. Chen served as the president of Fullerton
Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater China regions)
between 2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003 and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the
food and beverage industry through dealing with clients from
that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business
administration from University of Missouri and a bachelor’s degree
in political science from National Chengchi University.

Mr. CHEN Johnny (BR&E %), aged 56, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in December 2015. Mr. Chen
Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor of Department
of Finance and Department of Management, Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny joined
the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in 2005. He
worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February 2015 in multiple
senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific region. His last position
in Zurich was the chairman of the life and general insurance
business in China. Prior to joining Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an
executive member of the Greater-China Management Board and
the Operating Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), as
well as a managing partner of PwC’s Beijing office.
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Mr. Chen Johnny is also an independent non-executive director of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba
Pictures Group Limited (stock code: 1060), and China Minsheng
Financial Holding Corporation Limited (stock code: 245), all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and
Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032), the shares of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. From 2005 to January 2014, Mr. Chen Johnny was a
non-executive director of New China Life Insurance Company Ltd.
(stock code: 1336), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode Island
and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson & Wales
University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.

Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (5B1-# ), aged 55, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director in August 2007. Mr.
Fan is the chairman and managing director of AsiaLink Capital
Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (Stock Code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (Stock Code:
1062), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882), LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (Stock Code:
112), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1868) and CGN
New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1811), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the United States.
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Mr. LO Peter (] % £), aged 60, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2007. Mr. Lo is
currently a director of China Enterprise Capital Limited. He is also
the chairman and an executive director of China Outfitters Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1146) and an independent non-executive
director of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 538), both
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He resigned as Chairman and a non-executive director from Sino
Distillery Group Limited (currently known as China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 0039) on 8 May
2013. Mr. Lo has over 22 years of experience in the business fields
and holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and
econometrics from the London School of Economics and Political
Science.

Annual Report 2015 F#§



REEXE 515 ARRIAKERNTE
FAKENERLEREZTSMHIERE
EATHMNERDZRARREEERAE
EEERHECERE - BHERALENERE
HBERAFRIESEE] —HR-

REELE 475 AKBEZATESHEM
BR-BRAEZBEEFRENAFRIES
JERE| —%&he

R E 4758 M1994F 108 A K&
P FR1994 45 ZE20094F BRI E A A Rl A 89
FRA-WMEHK—TEERAR EGS
—DEARAFA - RNEH—CERIBERA
B EATMBTHEERE TE-RALER2010
FIAEAASERMEEATMELRE B
2014510 ERASERMEERIBK
B-AERMIFEARBBIFE TIELR K
EEHBEEPRBAZEQNS R TSE L2
i THRAMESEESSRITHERE
FRIZ o

HERLE 3958 PM1999F 4 A It AR &
" TA200043 A 22006108 BT B 1L £
—EEMARAFEEREEE EBEH-
IR EELEE  2006F10 A RIETAREE
BEKEMEBREE  MR2014F10 A RREE
TEEGEHRMEREBREE RAEMEK
BITEBEEOI7TFLER - HEEREF LGS

FRBGEBR LB -

Annual Report 2015 %

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (&4 ), aged 51, is our president and
executive Director. The day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board are
delegated to the management team of the Company which is led
by Mr. Hou. Mr. Hou’s biographical details are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (BREI/E) | aged 47, is our executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen'’s biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profile” of
this annual report.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3&1%) , aged 47, joined our Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(ME#H—MEARARF), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CES S — ¥ EFR A7), Wuhan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (REH—ERmMABAMRAE) . In January 2010, Mr.
Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food Department of
the Group. In October 2014, Mr. Zhang was appointed as General
Manger of Instant Food Department of the Group. Mr. Zhang has
over 21 years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology,
Hankou with a bachelor degree of engineering. He participated in
various training programs in the marketing area.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (2 &), aged 39, joined our Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BEILFE— DX RBABARA
&]) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as
the head of bottled water department of the Group since October
2006. He has been the head of the combined drink products
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 17
years of experience in the food and beverage industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University.
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Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (28 (), aged 47, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and our Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business
and juice business and as manager of the investment planning
unit. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label) OEM business
new business unit. In 2011, he was transferred to a subsidiary,
Uni-President (Shanghai) Private Label Marketing & Trading Co.,
Ltd., as general manager. In 2012, he was the general manager of
our trading business unit. He has been the general manager of juice
business of the Group since 2013. He has more than 22 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated
from Drexel University in Pennsylvania, U.S.A. (EEENSEEAE)
with a master’s degree in business administration.

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (% I 25
President Enterprises Corp. (&M 4 —

, aged 43, joined Guangzhou
TEERQA), a
subsidiary of our Group, in February 2009 and was responsible
for the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. ([EM#FE— 2B R A a]) and Wuhan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RZH—PERBARA
7)), subsidiaries of our Group, prior to October 2011. She was
re-designated as the deputy general manager of the head office
of our Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was appointed
as the general manager of the head office of our Group’s tea
business in July 2013. Before joining our Group, she has engaged
in marketing in various companies such as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan
Branch, Ting Hsin International Group (TE#T B % &) and
YFY (5k2%4) and has 19 years of experience in relation to the
food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006, she
started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (k2R G LMD B R A F) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TEF#TEIFR £ # ) and has since gained 10
years of work experience in the Mainland. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA program (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s
National Chung Hsing University.
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Company Secretary

Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (25 #8), aged 46, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has previously served the
Company from February 2008 to April 2014 and rejoined the
Company since September 2014. Mr. Pang is a director of Gowise
Corporate Services Limited. He has 24 years of experience in
financial management and corporate secretarial work. He holds
a master’s degree of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting, a specialist certificate (Corporate
Finance) from the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute,
and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom.

% — ¥ E#E K AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures and appreciates that good corporate governance is
crucial to enhancing investors’ confidence in the Company. In the
opinion of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, the Company has complied with all code provisions
of the corporate governance code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended
31 December 2015 (the “Year”), except for the deviation as
disclosed below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present. As
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is
not applicable.

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (retired with effect from 15 May 2015)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny (appointed with effect from 1 December 2015)
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony

Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (retired with effect from 15 May 2015)

Mr. Lo Peter
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment. In
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The Directors’ remunerations are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and

experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term business
objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor and control
the operating, management and financial performance of the
There
are currently four committees established under the Board, being

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the investment,
strategy and development committee (the “Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee”). Each committee has its terms of

reference and reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the President. The roles of the Chairman
of the Board and President of the Company are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties properly and
ensuring discussions on material matters take place on a timely
basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-day operations
and implementation of the strategies and directions set by the
Board are delegated to the management team of the Company (the
“Management”) which is led by the President. The Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the
Group.



RAFEE AQRRRITAXREESEH K  During the Year, the Company held five Board meetings. The
EENAFEERRFEES S 20N attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings during

™ the Year is set out below:
HESEAE gEHE (M)
Number of meetings attended/
EFEEAHE number of meetings

Member of the Board (Note 1)
HITES Executive Directors

BESREE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 5/5
LR o (ABAEHE) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President) 5/5
PREQE ST (HER) Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer) 5/5
FPITESF Non-Executive Directors

MREE 2 S A (KiEE2) Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (Note 2) 0/1
BRI E Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 5/5
BIENITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PREEFE S A Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/5
PRE 7 oA (BEEES) Mr. Chen Johnny (Note 3) 1/1
SBIESLE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 5/5
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter 5/5
% ST A (T FE2) Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (Note 2) 1/1

et : BERAEREZHBRHETNLBHEES  Note 1: Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number
BETHREBTZEERCRBEE - of board meetings held during their respective tenures.

Mizt2 : B2015F5A158 8 MEZELEBERE  Note 2: Mr. Lin Lung-Yi retired as a non-executive Director and Mr. Yang
RITEE MBAREECREBILIE Ing-Wuu retired as an independent non-executive Director with
WITESBMN- effect from 15 May 2015.

B3 : B2015F12A1HE RERLEEST  Note 3: Mr. Chen Johnny was appointed as an independent non-executive

RBIIENITES - Director with effect from 1 December 2015.
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The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of required number of
independent non-executive Directors which shall be at least one-
third of the Board with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board
considers each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule
3.138.

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.
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The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of
the current Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

FBEEIER (M)
Topics on training covered

Name of Directors (Note)
BESREE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a
REESLE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung a,c
ek 38 & o A Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a, b
BRI E Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a
PREE{ES A Mr. Chen Sun-Te a, b
BREREE Mr. Chen Johnny a, c
B ESE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b
BEE2LE Mr. Lo Peter a
Bt 5 - Note:

(@) corporate governance/regulatory

(b)  finance

(c) industry-specific
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During the Year and up to 15 May 2015, the Audit Committee
comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Lo
Peter, who are independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lin
Lung-Yi, who was a non-executive Director. Following the change
of Board composition of the Company on 15 May 2015, Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, a non-executive Director, was appointed as a member
of Audit Committee in replacement of Mr. Lin Lung-Yi, The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness
of the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 respectively;

(i)  met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control
systems and the internal audit function of the Group;



(iv), AEEARFEZFHRREHERMESL  (v) conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
SETFER: connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

(v) BEEZE2016F12A31HILEE 2% (v approved the audit plan for the year ended 31 December
Zat &l 2016;

(vi) st ONEEAZERAD 2B BEESMNERZ  (vi)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the

Mz ZERMIINEZEA 2 EER engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
SEEgRHEEE K Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

(i) BEARABREBITLESATEIE®  (vi) reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the

XERAETLERZESREZGE corporate governance requirements as set out in the
EPR Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of Audit
Committee.

BRENARFELREREZEEE#H 2C48  The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
HHmr: meetings during the Year is set out below:

HESBRE EFHE (1)

Number of meetings attended/

EREEEHE number of meetings
Member of the Audit Committee (Note 1)
SCESRE (£E) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairmar) 3/3
PREEfBEAE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 3/3
MEE L E (KFE2) Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (Note 2) 0/1
B e (MIFES) Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (Note 3) 2/2
BEE2LE Mr. Lo Peter 3/3
B 5 - Notes:

(1) BERZEERERAFEZHERZIILE (1)  Attendances of the members of the Audit Committee during the Year
REXBETHBEETZESR 2AHE were made by reference to the number of such meetings held during
JE ° their respective tenures.

(2) H2015F5A15HE MEXELETHAZE (20 M Lin Lung-Yi ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with
BEEENE - effect from 15 May 2015.

(3) HB2015F5A15HE e EEZTA (3 Mr Su Tsung-Ming was appointed as a member of the Audit
EIZLEBEEKE - Committee with effect from 15 May 2015.
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During the Year, The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fan
Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an executive
Director. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individual nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
and the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company requires to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The nomination procedure
basically follows the Articles of Association, which empowers the
Board from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The Nomination Committee will base on objective criteria
with due regard to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company, to identify and recommend the
proposed candidate(s) to the Board for approval of appointment(s),
and where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, his/her independence will be
assessed in accordance with, among others, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/
she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filing the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to
review the composition and structure of the Board. The Nomination
Committee also nominated and recommended the appointment of
Mr. Chen Johnny as an Independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 December 2015 on 29 September 2015 and the
service contract entered into between the Company and Mr. Chen
Johnny for a term of office of three years from 1 December 2015 to

MERAREELFEIREZESEH 2L 30 November 2018, of which the nomination was accepted by the
Fwnr Board. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee meeting during the Year is set out below:
REZEEHE HESRAY SEEAE
Member of Number of meetings attended/
the Nomination Committee number of meetings
SBIESRE (EE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 3/3
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter 3/3
BERTE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 3/3
RAREE LB E2015F5A158 B ZE 8  During the Year and up to 15 May 2015, the Remuneration
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Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu; and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. Following the change of Board
composition of the Company on 15 May 2015, Mr. Lo Peter, an
independent non-executive Director, was appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee in replacement of Mr. Yang Ing-
Wuu. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chen Sun-Te.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year. A

summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is set

out as follows:

reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors; and

reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/
package and approved the specific remuneration package of
the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration

Committee meetings during the Year is set out below:

HESERE ERHE (1)

FMEEERE Number of meetings attended/
Member of number of meetings
the Remuneration Committee (Note 1)
PREE(ESC A (F/) Mr. Chen Sun-Te (Chairman) 3/4
BERTHE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 4/4
3= 2 (KEE2) Mr. Lo Peter (Note 2) 3/3
HER L AE (KMFES) Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (Note 3) 11
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Notes:

Attendances of the members of the Remuneration Committee during
the Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings
held during their respective tenures.

Mr. Lo Peter was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 15 May 2015.

Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 15 May 2015.
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INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board also established the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee. During the Year and up to 15 May 2015,
the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee comprised
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Hou Jung-Lung who are executive
Directors, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, who is a non-executive Director,
and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter, who
were independent non-executive Directors. Following the change
of Board composition of the Company on 15 May 2015, Mr.
Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, an independent non-executive Director,
was appointed as a member of the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee in replacement of Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu. The
Investment, Strategy and Development Committee is chaired by Mr.
Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

% — 1> % 7 Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 7/]
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The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held four
meetings during the Year. The attendance record of each member
of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee meetings
during the Year is set out below:

HEEERE FREA (1)
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

(Note 1)
Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 4/4
Hou Jung-Lung 4/4
Su Tsung-Ming 4/4
Chen Sun-Te 3/4
Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Note 2) 3/3
Yang Ing-Wuu (Note 3) 11
Lo Peter 4/4

Notes:

(1)  Attendances of the members of the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee during the Year were made by reference to
the number of such meetings held during their respective tenures.

2 Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony was appointed as a member of the
Investment, Strategy and Development Committee with effect from
15 May 2015.

3) Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu ceased to be a member of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee with effect from 15 May 2015.

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the 4 members of the
senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group ranged
from RMB1.0 million to RMB1.6 million.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. In June 2013, the Board adopted a Board Diversity
Policy to comply with code provision A.5.6 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board Diversity Policy is available on the
website of the Company.

The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the
Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains
a core of members with longstanding knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
process for the nomination of Directors is led by the Nomination
Committee, which has been made on a merit basis. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness. The names of the current Directors
and their biographies (including their role as well as their skills and
experience) are set out on pages 53 to 57 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectively and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standard. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and have
recommended the Board to reappoint it as the external auditors
of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable
to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit services
amounted to RMB7.3 million. No significant remuneration was
paid to PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to the
Company during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions during the Year and
up to the date of the annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code when dealing in the Company’s shares.

% — ¥ E#E R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the Year, through discussions
with our management, the internal audit team and external auditors
and with reference to a report submitted by the internal audit
team, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions
under the authority of the Board and the guidance of the Audit
Committee. It regularly reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board for its audit findings and recommendations on internal
control. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
To be cost-effective and to ensure the quality of the audit and the
completion of the audit as scheduled, the internal audit was also
carried out with the help of computer systems. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls
and is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with present internal
control systems of the Group and considers them effective and
adequate. During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
nothing has been found which requires substantial improvement.
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The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and, if appropriate, press releases
of the Company providing updated information of the Group;
and (i) the availability of latest information of the Group at the
Company’s website.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
15 May 2015. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming and Mr. Lo
Peter, were present and available to answer questions raised by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM. The Company’s external
auditors also attended the 2015 AGM.

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong written requisition specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as at the
date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s) hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at a general meeting of the
Company.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852 2893 1150.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do
so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above
and specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
79 to 80 of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements
for the Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently and have made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The role of the Company Secretary is currently performed by Mr.
Pang Ka Fai, Angus (“Mr. Pang”) who rejoined the Company on 26
September 2014 following his resignation from the same position
with effect from 2 April 2014. Mr. Pang is serving as an external
service provider to the Company and the primary contact person
of the Company with Mr. Pang is Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, the executive
Director and the chief financial officer of the Company. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Pang has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.



=
pwec

B —EXPEERERAF
(RESEHESEMA L BRLA])
ERE

RAZEED (AT (M) 2 FFHIIER
FOIE2200BE M —EREZERER A A
(LAT%%&f%@ﬂ)&ﬁﬁ#%gﬁmﬁé
% - bR A VB HREBENR2015F12
ABERGEEERBEREHEZALFE
E!’J BRAERER BAZERER RAEDR
""""" BEgRMGEAESRER UAKTEETHR
RPERHEMMFREER -

7

ERREZARERBEEEGAMASRM
MEBM B REERREFE (RRED) K
BRERMEGEVBRE USHEAMBHRE
FEHEEMAFHNRREEZEERRRER
REMBERRMVCENRNEIES - UEHEE M
BRRIMFERNUFFRERMEBNEKX
B o R L

BFMETERBERMANEASZSEAY
BRERFELER LERBERBRRBS M

MER BRI ARREREEME A -3
PrefABENARREMEMALTE £
RAEREEMEE-

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 81 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

ARIC KA T il W B P > B IR Rt =

Atk : +852 2289 8888 » fHH :

+852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Rk K 1
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Land use rights

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using
the equity method

Available-for-sale financial assets

Deferred income tax assets

Other receivables — non-current
portion

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

2015512 A31H As at 31 December 2015

B 5
Note

© o ~N O

11
12

16

14
15

16

17
18

2015
AR®T R
RMB’000

2,214,488
11,454,886
349,576
33,885
1,621,725
227,024
328,137

12,111

16,241,832

1,367,717
529,198

548,343

2,919,329

5,364,587

21,606,419

2014
ARBTT
RMB’000

2,150,679
11,641,653
242,439
28,614
1,545,708
192,809
321,881

52,283

16,176,066

1,129,306
487,418

1,256,788

86,710
2,128,121

5,088,343

21,264,409
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2015512 A31H As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
B 5 ARETT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e EQUITY
EATEZIZFEAEGESR  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
[N Share capital 19 39,764 39,764
f& 157 % (B Bk Share premium account 19 4,829,899 4,829,899
H b Other reserves 20 2,274,569 2,213,148
REB AT Retained earnings 20 4,458,171 3,753,927
RS Total equity 11,602,403 10,836,738
=R LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
BEEFTSH AR Deferred income tax liability 12 197,350 188,845
BE Borrowings 23 2,665,000 4,280,095
H M FE T 5008 — 3ERDHAEES  Other payables — non-current
portion 22 439,149 237,985
3,301,499 4,706,925
REBERE Current liabilities
B E S BRI Trade payables 21 1,229,015 1,054,204
B g IB M ERE A Other payables and accruals 22 3,836,107 3,026,862
B&E Borrowings 23 1,589,316 1,556,273
BHIFMEHAE Current income tax liabilities 45,941 83,093
TEeRMT A Derivative financial instruments 24 2,138 314
6,702,517 5,720,746
HwWaeE Total liabilities 10,004,016 10,427,671
EEhEaEHREE Total equity and liabilities 21,606,419 21,264,409

FBBE220B LM B AR E M B |MEKZ

5

The notes on pages 88 to 220 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F8I1E220B iR A B &k 2 W2016F3AH
18BHEEESHE YA TIWALIRRES

BERE-

The consolidated financial statements on page 81 to page 220
were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and
were signed on its behalf.

EE% REE
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEFE HITEE

Executive Director Executive Director

Annual Report 2015 %
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2015 2014
B 5 ARBTRT AREBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Wz Revenue 5 22,101,871 22,487,671
$H & P AR Cost of sales 27 (13,961,138)  (15,179,284)
EX Gross profit 8,140,733 7,308,387
HAb G — %58 Other gains - net 25 16,672 158,083
H A Other income 26 342,518 266,253
Hifx Other expenses 27 (132,320) (98,243)
HERMSHEMNS Selling and marketing expenses 27 (6,320,528) (6,294,847)
THAX Administrative expenses 27 (1,015,577) (967,783)
R T Operating profit 1,031,498 371,850
BE WA Finance income 135,955 105,233
A& AR Finance costs (109,637) (147,382)
mEWA S (KA) —F%  Finance income/(costs) — net 29 26,318 (42,149)
EREARZ E(HIRE Share of profit of investments
il accounted for using
the equity method 10 112,945 84,977
BRAT BB ANEF Profit before income tax 1,170,761 414,678
TSz Income tax expense 30 (336,256) (129,141)
FERADATEZEFTEA Profit for the year and
PEfRER attributable to equity holders
of the Company 834,505 285,537
FEXQATEZIZFEAEWN  Earnings per share for profit
B zEREF attributable to equity holders of
(AERARETE) the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—HEAR#EE — Basic and diluted 31 19.32 cents 7.18 cents

$88FE220E M BR AL AR AX 2 The notes on pages 88 to 220 are an integral part of these

— &5 e consolidated financial statements.
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H ZE2015%12H31H [EFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
k=2 ARBTRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERA Profit for the year 834,505 285,537
Htzmu s : Other comprehensive income:
B R Em B Itemns that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
At ESMEE ZAFE  Fair value (losses)/gains on
(BR) /A5 -%EFE available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax 20 (11,717) 609
FEHMEEKWSE - Other comprehensive income
FRELFE for the year, net of tax (11,717) 609
FEREAATERZFZEA Total comprehensive income
EhzzERREE for the year and attributable
to equity holders of
the Company 822,788 286,146

$88FE220B v M BR AL A EM®MA 2  The notes on pages 88 to 220 are an integral part of these
— &85 o consolidated financial statements.
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EHZE2015%12H31H I[FFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

ARRRERTAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B RPEE Hittfh e REEN

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings
Balance at 1 January 2014 34,047 2,243,980 2,285,459 3,678,682
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 285,537
Other comprehensive income
Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax - - 609 -
Total other comprehensive income - - 609 -
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 609 285,537
Transaction with owners
Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 110,292 (110,292)
Issue of ordinary shares 5717 2,585,919 - -
Dividends relating to 2013 - - (183,212) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 39,764 4,829,899 2,213,148 3,753,927
Balance at 1 January 2015 39,764 4,829,899 2,213,148 3,753,927
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 834,505
Other comprehensive income
Fair value losses on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax - - (11,7117) -
Total other comprehensive income - - (11,7117) -
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (11,7117) 834,505
Transaction with owners
Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,261 (130,261)
Dividends relating to 2014 - - (57,123) -
Balance at 31 December 2015 39,764 4,829,899 2,274,569 4,458,171

8,142,168

285,537

609

609

286,146

2,591,636
(183,212)

10,836,738

10,836,738

834,505

(11,717)

(11,717)

822,788

(57,123)

11,602,403

F88E220B 2 MM A4 A MK REZ  The notes on pages 88 to 220 are an integral part of these

— 85

consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest expenses paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary,
net of cash acquired
Investments in joint ventures
and associates
Decrease in investment
in joint ventures
Payment and prepayment for
land use rights
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from redemption of time
deposits with maturity more than
3 months
Increase of investment properties
Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividends received from
joint ventures
Dividends received from
an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

2015
B 5 ARET R
Note RMB’000
33 3,982,545
(147,744)
(363,369)
3,471,432
36 16,120
10 (24,243)
10 =
(99,357)
(1,193,338)
(20,919)
(1,117,693)
(43,900)
130,766

33
247,964
10 2,500
10 3,199
(2,098,901)

2014
ARETT
RMB’000

1,712,018
(114,781)
(186,008)

1,411,229

(308)
27,544
(124,008)
(3,037,248)
(17,329)
(324,099)
(32)

(86,700)

324,717

8,950

3,199

(3,225,314)



EHZE2015%12H31H IFFZ For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
B 5 AREBTR AREBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEITB2ESRE Cash flows from financing
activities
BT TS IR F 58 Net proceeds from shares issued - 2,591,636
RITEEMEHIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 11,835,641 13,021,744
BTEBATS A Proceeds from notes issued - 2,000,000
EERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (13,495,775) (15,183,058)
TESRIT AR Payment for derivative financial
instruments - (43,274)
PTESRITEMENRIEA Proceeds from derivative financial
instruments 149 -
MAREERTFEA Dividends paid to equity holders of
TAFIRE the Company (57,123) (183,212)
mEES (FTA),/ Net cash (used)/received in
Sz #*RE financing activities (1,717,108) 2,203,836
HERBESLEEY OB2), Net (decrease)/increase in cash
EhNEEE and cash equivalents (344,577) 389,751
FHzReRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 1,804,022 1,413,929
RekBEFED Exchange gain on cash and
P& 5 U & cash equivalents 13,872 342
FR2ReRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 18 1,473,317 1,804,022

F88E220E v M B ARG BEX 2 —  The notes on pages 88 to 220 are an integral part of these
oo consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

% — ¥ E#E R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

% — % F B R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform to the current period’s presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported total assets,
liabilities, equity or profit.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

89
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SHBRBE (8§) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REBEE (F) 2.1
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Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2015

The following new amendments of HKFRSs are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and relevant to the Group’s operations:

° Annual improvements 2012 include changes
from the 2010 - 2012 cycle of the annual
improvements project that are effective for relevant
transactions executed on or after 1 July 2014:

- Amendment to HKFRS 8 ‘Operating
Segments’ require disclosure of the
judgements made by management in
aggregating operating segments and a
reconciliation of segment assets to the
entity’s assets when segment assets are
reported.

- Amendment to HKAS 24 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ clarify that the reporting entity
is not required to disclose the compensation
paid by the management entity (as a related
party) to the management entity’s employee
or directors, but it is required to disclose
the amounts charged to the reporting entity
by the management entity for services
provided.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2015 (Continuea)

o Annual improvements 2013 include changes
from the 2011 - 2013 cycle of the annual
improvements project, that are effective for
relevant transactions executed on or after 1 July
2014:

- Amendment to HKFRS13 ‘Fair Value
Measurement’ clarify the portfolio exception
allows an entity to measure the fair value
of a group of financial assets and financial
liabilities on a net basis, applies to all
contracts (including non-financial contracts)
within the scope of HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9.

- Amendment to HKAS 40 ‘Investment
Property’ clarifies that the interrelationship
between HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 when
classifying property as investment property
or owner-occupied property.

The following new amendments of HKFRSs are
effective for the first time for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2015 and not relevant to the Group’s
operations (although they may affect the accounting for
future transactions and events):
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@

(Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2015 (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 19 regarding defined benefit
plans is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2014. It applies to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only in the
period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment
allows contributions that are linked to service,
and do not vary with the length of employee
service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits
earned in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary
according to the length of employee service, must
be spread over the service period using the same
attribution method that is applied to the benefits.

Amendment to HKFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’
is effective for relevant transactions executed on
or after 1 July 2014. It clarifies that HKFRS 3 does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of
any joint arrangement under HKFRS 11 in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement.

The adoption of the above new amendments of
HKFRSs starting from 1 January 2015 did not give
rise to any significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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21 mEEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New standards and amendments issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and have not been early adopted by
the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2015, and have not been early adopted by the Group in
preparing these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendment to HKFRS 11 ‘Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operation’, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 ‘Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 ‘Agriculture:
Bearer Plants’, effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016.

% — % F B R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2015 F#§ 98



e R EmAR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

94

ERSTHREE (&)

21.1 B EHRREEZEE (&

(b) EEMGER2015F151HFH
18 89 87 B JE ) 7R A SR AT
1ER AR FTER RASET
(%)

BEAVBREEREI0HRRES
G E R E2857 [ & & W H B
ERNRNEERECHMNEED
EFE | 2E5 - RET 2016
FIAIBR 2 AR FE M
ERCEEBBHEREERE B
|§f%o

B G ERFE27 BT
HERWOERIE] ZEF] 12016
FIATE R Z KRB FEHRE
R e

2014F FEUHE T E AT ER]:
BB B REERFESH [FFEHD
ENERDEERDKRILKEEE
®l BEMBHRESERETR 2
MIA:-BRE] BELHERE
195% [E &R ] REA =L
E345 [P HIB B WS ] - 72016
FIABR 2 ERBHFESRME
LU

BRAWBEREEREI105%E BB
PBREENF12R LB B SR
ERE285E [REHRE  BAAH
B PISNESR ] Z B FT - 20164
TR R 2 RREMFERBE
Bie

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New standards and amendments issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 ‘Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’, originally intended to
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed.

Amendment to HKAS 27 ‘Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Annual improvements 2014 that affect the following
standards: HKFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations’, HKFRS 7 ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’, HKAS 19 ‘Employee
Benefits’ and HKAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 ‘Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception’, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New standards and amendments issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 ‘Disclosure Initiative’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these new
amendments and standards, and intends to adopt the
amendments no later than the respective effective dates
of the amendments.

(c)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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22 WEBAT (&) 2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement
(Note 2.9).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3
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Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associated companies (Continued)

The Group’s share of associated companies’ post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equal or exceed its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the associated company is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24
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Associated companies (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated companies are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the income
statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as at 1 January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.

% — % F B R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Annual Report 2015 %

(c)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

% — % F B R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:
Buildings
Machinery and factory equipment

Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

of lease terms

The assets’

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note

2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
in the

are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’,
income statements.

% — ¥ EE R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 years
10 years
3-5 years

5 years or shorter

residual values and useful lives are
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

% — % F B R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

108
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(@ Gooadwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an

expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the

estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

% — ¥ EE R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

% — % F B R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

109
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘restricted bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
bank balances’ in the balance sheet (also refer to Notes
2.16 and 2.17).
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2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘Other gains/(losses)-net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

% — % F B R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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212 eEERE (&) 2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Time deposits with
maturity more than three months and restricted bank
deposits are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Trade payables (Continued)

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 EEETTHRBE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

222 EHARIEEFTEH (&) 2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
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(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
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2 EEETTHXRBE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

223 EE®RA (&) 2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)
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(b)  Profit-sharing and bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s

acceptance of the products.

(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period

when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the

leased asset is diminished.
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2 EESTHHERE (H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 =R (&) 2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Operating leases

(@ The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.28 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates to secure loans and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.29 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is

probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the

Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas and recognised assets or liabilities, such
as cash and companies bank balances (Note 18),
borrowings (Note 23) and trade receivables (Note 15)
part of which are denominated in United States dollar
(“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”).

As at 31 December 2015, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would have been
approximately RMB11,180,000 lower/higher (2014:
RMB104,872,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-
sale (Note 11) or at fair value through profit or loss (Note
17). The Group has not hedged its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities financial assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are classified
either as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss and are publicly traded, the fair value is
determined with reference to quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2015, if the market prices of the
securities classified as available-for-sale had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly
traded available-for-sale financial assets and total equity
would be approximately RMB1.5 million (2014: RMB1
million) higher/lower than the current value. If the market
prices of securities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables held constant, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s publicly traded financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and post-tax profit for the year
would be nil (2014: RMB6,503,000) higher/lower than
the current value.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits (Note 18) and borrowings
(Note 23) with interest charges, the Group have no
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 18 and Note 23 respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB16,282,606 lower/higher (2014:
RMB41,293,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings which
would offset interest income on bank deposits.
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AEBYESEETHEER
@ o 7B M IS MRS B IRTT
FR - ReEMREFEY BRE
2 8RR B A WK TE M R E A
RAKEBEREESCHEES
A& RNEERR-

M2015F 12831 H 2 £ R1TTF
REBTRENDEFEREERGTE
WRAEERRREN S %
B TRETERZHEDHIRIT
GTREBITHES A%

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2015, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank
balances by counterparties:

2015 2014
ARE TR AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH Counterparties

PG NER1T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 367,549 614,154
—INE IR TT — Foreign owned banks 1,654,606 970,698
—EmBEAEERIT - Other domestic commercial banks 897,123 543,209
2,919,278 2,128,061

* NG ARITEEFBEIN * Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and

ROBBERAT  FELER
FRBERA R ERTRE
ERARRTERRRTROE
RAR -

AN AEB MR RS SR TY
MTRITRSBEBAER  AE
REAEBBERATNEELBE
HE R -

Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

There were also financial guarantees provided by the
Group, which were the guarantees given to the banks
and financial institutions to secure borrowings and
finance leases of an associate of the Group.

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2015 %



e B R AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 BBRERERE (&)

3.1

BsEEEE (&)
(b) EEEE (&)

M2015%F 12 A31H N & B H#F
BHEM@mE M E AR I &
BAEARRKR (2014 - HEESR
BEBRINZTBEREAEZRAR A
AR #48,927,0007T) °

EREIARBEBHRERSHEN
J& 49 75 RAEAR] &5 18 -

AEBARIEDHETIREFRK
ERNBEIMRERZEERE
H-RIBEEAREERFERRL
Bz @ERNEP AEBECD LK
R AEREFREZSZREES

) RBEZmEE

BEEZARDESCRAREES S
FRAz A RRESEY &8
RERAMZERAACERERE
MBS REs REEMS
BT 2N AEEZBRII#H
RAMCEAREERERE
NHERASBEHEAE RO LREELZ
ExAHEHA-

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

g—i

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group did not have significant exposure to credit
risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: exposure to off
balance sheet financial guarantees amounted to
RMB48,927,000):

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

%P B2 1% BR 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 F#§

131



=)

B 75 R AR MY AE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MEBERER (&

3.1
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BHREREE (&)
(c) mEBEZEE (&)

TRRASEZEZBRAEEI
ZEERANGEEREZEANIIHA
ZHTHEZFERNEBIHE
BINEE - RAFMRBESEAA N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

REFVRIMESR=E - The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
K58 Group PR-F —-ZmE —ZhE @t
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2015%12A31R As at 31 December 2015
HE Borrowings 1,589,316 2,165,000 500,000 4,254,316
FEMEMR Interest payments on borrowings 123,459 58,302 32,322 214,083
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,138 - - 2,138
EREZEFRESEZE  Trade and bils payables 1,229,015 - - 1,229,015
HitENFUEREAEE  Other payables and accruals,
(TeELBAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 1,851,930 = = 1,851,930
At R AR TE Other long term payables - 439,149 - 439,149
4,795,858 2,662,451 532,322 7,990,631
HBERAD Financial guarantee contracts = = = =
R2014512831H As at 31 December 2014
EE Borrowings 1,556,273 2,127,120 2,152,975 5,836,368
EENSAR Interest payments on borrowings 130,727 96,900 65,854 293,481
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments 314 - - 314
ENEREAREMNZE  Trade and bils payables 1,054,204 = - 1,054,204
HEthERZUERESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TeEFeRER) (excluding non-financial liabilties) 1,896,678 = = 1,896,678
AR AR Other long term payables - 237,985 - 237,985
4,638,196 2,462,005 2,218,829 9,319,030
HBERAN Financial guarantee contracts 48,927 = = 48,927

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BHRERER (&)

3.1

3.2

BHREREE (&)
) HEEZEME (&)

BEAANRDREEENEE
HE rmEEAREERID
FEHE 2 HNBREEEEAN
IESCE R

EXREREE

AEEERERZBNRRER
SEHEBURBERLETARBBRR
REDMUR BEMERIE A
AR Y BEERREEAERE
OB D E R ©

REFIARELRGE  AEET
HEARR BB Z 8 #1T
R EEENR D ER-

SITERMAT A ERRE
EARELEEEREAR AR
{8 b S Ty 6 OB IR DA A A
S

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
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3 HMEBRBERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
32 EXEMERE (&) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
AEEBMNKEBEBEEAGRELL The Group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
R M35 7K R50% © 20159 & below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2015
2014F12A31EMEARBEL R and 2014 are as follows:
W
2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®IEE (M5E23) Total borrowings (Note 23) 4,254,316 5,836,368
B IRE KT RS Less: cash and time deposits
(FI5E18) (Note 18) (2,915,109) (2,128,121)
BEIEF 58 Net debt 1,339,207 3,708,247
“akEn Total equity 11,602,403 10,836,738
HENR Total capital 12,941,610 14,544,985
EARBELE Gearing ratio 10.35% 25.50%
R2015F12A31H  EXAABE L The decrease of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015
KD TH R R2015FE BB EAT was due to the repayment of borrowings in 2015.
ﬁ o
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3 HERRER (& 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME 3.3 Fair value estimation
TRAGBBEZED TIZAFESE The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
ZeMIA -ZEBAEREMNT: fair value by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

e HREBEEXBEELR e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
MHEARE (KRLEFHE) identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
(1) -

e KRIFIEmMBREMHRE *  Inputs other than quoted prices included within
I ZEERBEZAEE level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
2 Hpve A 0] B EE (H either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
BlanfEE) k@ (AR 8 is, derived from prices) (level 2).

E1%) (F28) -

e EEFRBBUWIFKEBEUTER e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
MSEE 28 A (BIER & on observable market data (that is, unobservable
= A) (F3E) - inputs) (level 3).

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. z] 86
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3 HMEEBRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 NFEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TRETRAEESBMEEN2015 The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
FK2014F12A31HFE 2 AF that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2015
B and 2014,

20155 R20144F
12A318 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREBT T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE Assets
At EeHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
(MFE11) (Note 11)
—%1E — Level 1 15,359 12,076
—%$3E — Level 3 211,665 180,733
227,024 192,809

AT EFBIERLEZ  Financial assets at fair value

cEEE (M:E17) through profit or loss (Note 17)

1= — Level 1 = 86,710
afE Liabilities
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments

(MF3E24) (Note 24)

— 2B — Level 2 2,138 314

/I 86 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3.3
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REZ=2015F 128318 LFE -
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BEREEAEB SR MmN
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3.3.1 EHFKEFERFE
(E1E)

AEBFIBRETZRREER
BRXMEREMRNDZKE - £H
EHR AFEDRERGEERZ
MIZHEMEE -

3.3.2 AiEER M E L FE
(%2/E)

F2EE AT ABEERIIME
AR - REEMINESHENME
BTS2 B HERGE AT
B -MREEBETEHF2EITAET
BERERTE-

M2015F12 A31 H 2 m EISMNE A
HWERRREACHEAHIBEEE
T (HERHDARBI136BET)
ZEH(2014F 11408 EXTT
(FERHARESTHEE L) °

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the listed securities are determined based on
the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair values
(Level 2)

Level 2 trading derivatives comprise forward foreign
exchange contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward exchange
rates that are quoted in an active market. The effects
of discounting are generally insignificant for Level 2
derivatives.

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2015 comprised contracts with notional
principal amounts totalling USD21 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB136 million) (2014: USD140 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB857 million)).

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 MKERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
333 EHEAT BB A EiE 3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
NFE (E3E) unobservable inputs (Level 3)
TRE2NEHZE2015F12A31B K The following table presents the changes in level 3
2014F12A31H I FE M FE3[E instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
TH#ZH- 31 December 2014,
2015 2014
AR®BT R ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HR A A R Opening balance 180,733 180,733
E—HEE Further capital injection 51,665 -
NEENE Fair value gains (20,000) -
k= Disposal (733) -
BRs g (H7E11) Closing balance (Note 11) 211,665 180,733

/I 88 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3.3
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3.3.3 BRAEAT BB H 2
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14.5% ) » DIRZEIRE N R0 &
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[Bp E = EEE o him A ERA TR
& IWABZE - U ETHEES
BMEEMNAFE - REZSE A
FEFEBAHIRE QAR R
& IRATFAREBRR & EE
EANBEMET REEBH
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EEM QRIS EE - R2015
F12A318 & AFE AR X
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TRER LA ARKE11,931,0007T
I n# A R#15,427,0007T °

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2015 was 14% (2014: 14.5%) per
annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multiple with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded. As at 31 December 2015, if the discount rate
and the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.40%/12.60%), the
carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB11,931,000 lower/
RMB15,427,000 higher than the current value.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BA SRS o 0 & & K iR 4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

AEEHEERBRRGFENG AR
BREEERNEMARETIE 21
EBERBATHRREHNSETREA -

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

41 BEAESTTHERRER 4.1
AEBEBHRRKEHBHERBZ-
BEEEARLEMERCEHEE

LVEEE ERERBR - EBT
REHTEMRFEACEER
BEROEEKERNARHEHE
MEFRFHAT -

(@ FTHUELHEELFE
VIR ERMSEE BT A
(e ESREE (MFE11)
ZEAER) 2 A HENERGE
RiiEE (FI5E3.3) - REE BT
HEEEZRE A AT EER
EHERER ZTRAFELERR-
—HFN LA BRREHNF
RN LXK E3.WE -

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a)  Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
11) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.
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4.1
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/(decrease) the deferred tax assets
by RMB19,062,000 (2014: increase/(decrease) the
deferred tax assets by RMB18,389,000).

141

Annual Report 2015 F#§



e MR WK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

142

RS EERHE (&) 4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BRI EERRR (&) 4.1

© WX BERREZIGEBE

nE  BEREBNEREELE
22 B B0 R 44 B G L R B
TR E R - TR E & B IR
R 5 PR OB (B 5 LT
T REHEIRBBERANR
fist o

EREAREEREBEIEL A
B LHERESG  (REEHAE
EHBETEHAEEBENREE
WE: (i —BEEZRAERS
AR AU E €58 (B0 A FER
HERAMRBREBENERTE
REBEEMBTORKESR
EREFHEIREE) I Kdi)
RREESREEAGERAE
ENTEER UREBRERE
TEARKFEREEMLERAE-
EEEFHRERZERZRE
(RRERESTEERMOIEERRRK
R EE) NAE SE) - o IR E R
APHREFHRENEALE
I B AR B 2 B A RO R AR
EEBENTE - WIBRAEE KA
HEEMARRREREERNEE
ATFEE A eZm N GEe2HE

WaR PR BERRE-

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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4 BEESTHERHE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
(&) JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

42 HRAEEETTBERNERA 4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

lﬁ:ﬁﬁ
(@ FTHUELHEENBE

AEBEREIHRLESREE
ELRERGEBRERTEGTER
3975l - IEMERFHERXN
HIET o AE L HER RS - REE T
HEBEEENMXEAREZ AFE
ERERARZFEGEREZE &
WEREEZWHREEEREH
EBH R BROTERERRR
RMEMRUREERBERESR
EER@E-

WMAFEERKANETE T EIE
ERREERK TR AEER
2015 BmEAPEHREERELD
A R #35,487,0007t ' B1#% B &
ENAHEESHEEEERT
BROEBF A FERABREZ Y=
igo

accounting policies
(@) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee company, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group would
suffer a loss of approximately RMB35,487,000 in its
2015 financial statements, being the transfer of the
accumulated fair value adjustments on the impaired
available-for-sale financial assets recognised in equity to
the income statement.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

,] 44 % — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



H E2015%F R2014F12A31B I FE
ZoEERIMT

D EbEn/ (BR)
BERA-FE

NEEZEARRIERE

wH/ (BR)

B P15 B A A
FrSBAX

FRERN

WERAAMFIE M
AHER
FEREH

THEERRE
BE

BREEAENRNRE

REE

2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Segment results

Revenue

Segment profit/(loss)

Finance income - net

Share of profit/(loss) of investments
accounted for using the equity method

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment items included
in the income statement
Depreciation and amortisation

Segment assets and liabilities

Assets

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

]

Beverages
ARBTR
RMB’000

14,051,115

1,105,171

114,724

1,000,285

11,801,888

1,461,263

3,143,511

1,100,616

2015

HERE Hit RAE

Instant
noodles Others Unallocated
AR%TR AR%¥Tn AR%®Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7,567,422 483,334 -
174,092 47,358 (295,123)
- - 26,318
- - (1,779)
279,440 44,633 78,750
4,189,231 448205 3,545,370
- - 160,462
1,543,692 194,593 5,122,220
185,784 74,825 39,614

Annual Report 2015 F#§

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

Group
ARET R
RMB’000

22,101,871

1,031,498
26,318

112,945

1,170,761
(336,256)

834,505

1,403,108

19,984,694

1,621,725

21,606,419

10,004,016

10,004,016

1,400,839
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WmkoRBER (&)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
2014
Bkt HERE Hip Al AEH
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PMEE Segment results
W zs Revenue 14,004,696 7,960,321 522,754 - 22,487,671
AEEF/ (E8) Segment profit/(loss) 702,474 (93,575) 35168 (272,217) 371,850
BAKK— T8 Finance cost - net - - - (42,149) (42,149)
PVEZEABR 2 JEI54%E  Share of profit/(loss) of investments
wH/ (EE) accounted for
using the equity method 113,389 - - (28,412) 84,977
B BT {5 3 A% A Profit before income tax 414,678
HEEEib3 Income tax expense (129,141)
FERM Profit for the year 285,537
Wi R ARt Other segment items included
AWEE in the income statement
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 1,011,186 298,261 37,383 66,217 1,413,047
IREERERE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 11,464,783 3,919,781 301,340 4,082,797 19,718,701
R EANRNRE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 1,383,356 - - 162,352 1,545,708
BEE Total assets 21,264,409
BfE Liabilities 2,774,594 1,192,923 110,485 6,349,669 10,427,671
FEY=Nr Total liabilities 10,427,671
EXLH Capital expenditure 2,521,025 585,543 174,910 64,182 3,345,660

% — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 %




e B R AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WmkoEHER (F)

BERARDEARNZEETEBREHA
BREFRBHREE AIHEESRMEE
B RRIOTEBERULRRENERIBH
T ERE-

BEASHBERABELTHERE WX
BB E&E RENFEARBLEE-

URTRABERZERDEE (TRES
BMITARBLEMSHEE) @BNT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, cash and bank balances, and investment
properties and related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in
different countries is as follows:

2015 2014
AR®T AR¥ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE (TBFE The total of non-current assets
ST ARELE other than financial instruments and
RSt &E) 2% deferred income tax assets
—/ - PRC 15,596,383 15,587,380
—FINE R — Overseas countries 78,177 21,713
SRt T H Financial instruments 239,135 245,092
BRI EE Deferred income tax assets 328,137 321,881
16,241,832 16,176,066

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 47
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6 TifEMARE 6 LAND USE RIGHTS
REERTHERAE o ERIBERG T The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
HFERE 2 KEMEERE  LREFE operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
DT book amounts are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
AR%T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®W1A1H At 1 January 2,150,679 2,113,888
NE Additions 99,357 124,008
U BE — KB A A (HiFE36)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) 21,470 -
e Disposals - (29,568)
By (MsEer) Amortisation (Note 27) (57,018) (57,649)
M12A31H At 31 December 2,214,488 2,150,679
DN Cost 2,470,627 2,349,800
Rt Accumulated amortisation (256,139) (199,121)
AR HER Net book amount 2,214,488 2,150,679
AREBZHAELMERESMRS All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
BACEEBAT: are with the lease periods as follows:
2015 2014
AR®T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
P BIRARA In the PRC, held on:
50%F PA £ 2 R 78 Bf Original lease period of over 50 years 10,533 10,758
10 50 7 [RHH A Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 2,203,955 2,139,921
FRIEEFRE Closing net book amount 2,214,488 2,150,679

/‘ 48 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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T E R (&)

AEEZzLiEREEHEEERA K
@mARANHERAK]  THERMISHER
P R [T MO T

LAND USE RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation charges of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2015 2014

AR¥T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

$HE A AR Cost of sales 26,306 34,393
HERTSHERS Selling and marketing expenses 3,333 4,333
THRAX Administrative expenses 27,379 18,923
57,018 57,649

W2015F12A31H AH AR
19,012,0007 (201445 - AR ¥
117,584,0007T ) A £ #th 37 & BN /5 £ i
FAEE AEBTEFEERES-

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights certificates for
land use rights amounting to RMB19,012,000 (2014:
RMB117,584,000) have not been obtained and the Group is
in the progress of applying for these certificates.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 49
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7 YME - BERKRE 7

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ERIA-Hfh
BF HERIBRG REREE HELE ERIE &t
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2014F181R At 1 January 2014
KA Cost 3,631,222 6,067,936 2,623,475 9,152 1,866,700 14,088,485
2itHE Accumulated depreciation (731,041) (1925,753) (1,236,246) 0,152) - (3,902,192)
LitRERE Accumulated impaiment provision - (394) - - - (394)
REFE Net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1,866,700 10,185,899
H2014512831ALEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FNREEE Opening net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1,866,700 10,185,899
HE Additions 54,632 162,371 454,679 - 2,582,709 3,204,291
THEEA Transfer upon completion 1,394,339 1,120,658 282,072 - (2,797,069) -
& (HEs7(a)i) Disposals (Note 37(al(i) (10,622 (336,929) (56913) - (934) (405,398)
BRZHANE (i) Transfers to investment properties (Note 8) (4,955) - - - - (4955)
E (Mzk27) Depreciation (Note 27) (212,482) (576,403) (549,314) - - (1,338,199)
BERE (W) Reversal of provision (Note 27) - 15 - - - 15
ERREER Closing net book amount 4,020,993 4,501,501 1,517,753 - 1,601,406 11,641,653
H2014512A31 8 At 31 December 2014
KA Cost 4,957,614 6,798,028 3,176,830 9,152 1,601,406 16,543,030
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (936,621) (2,296,148) (1,659,077) (9,159) - (4,900,998)
ZitRERE Accumulated impairment provision - (379 - - - (379)
FHEE Net book amount 4,020,993 4,501,501 1,617,753 - 1,601,406 11,641,653
HZ015512R31ALEE Year ended 31 December 2015
ENEEEE Opening net book amount 4,020,993 4,501,501 1,517,753 o 1,601,406 11,641,653
HE Additions 84,446 76,740 117,19 - 927,403 1,205,783
RE-FME AR (Fz36) Acqisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) 21,963 26,976 4311 - - 53,310
THEEA Transfer upon completion 1,060,461 482,600 100,300 - (1,643,361) -
e Disposals (395) (4,512) (3,490) - - (8,397)
BRZRENE (Fte) Transfers to investment properties (Note 8) (125,802) - - - - (125,802)
e (Maor) Depreciation (Note 27) (239,566) (555,204) (516,917) - - (1,311,777)
BERE (W) Reversal of provision (Note 27) - 116 - - - 116
FREAFE Closing net book amount 4,822,100 4,528,127 1,219,211 - 885,448 11,454,886
20155124314 At 31 December 2015
WA Cost 5,966,603 7,346,679 3,311,966 9,152 885,448 17,519,848
2iiE Accumulated depreciation (1,144,503) (2,818,289 (2,092,755) (9,152) - (6,064,699)
2itREEE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 4,822,100 4,528,127 1,219,211 - 885,448 11,454,886

150
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ME BERRE (&)

FEERACEBGRARERMBOT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2015 2014

ARET AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

SH & KR Cost of sales 871,223 845,419
HERMSEHEMS Selling and marketing expenses 316,908 354,540
TR Administrative expenses 123,646 138,240
1,311,777 1,338,199

AEBEZEFR2HMURTE-

R2015% 22014512 A31 B I 4 1K 17
TRME BERERE-

REBEFHEZHSBRADAR
#23,500,0007T (20145 : AR
19,900,0007T) B 5t A 4R & W 5 & #Y
[E WAl (FEzE26) ©

FRN AEECBEEREENEERR
AR #¥110,183,0007T (20144 A
R #35,397,0007T) BT E R g B
ANDEE-—REENMEELHRGF
2.63% (20144 : 2.66% ) BT E A »

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2015 and 2014.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB23.5 million
(2014: RMB19.9 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 26).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB110,183,000 (2014: RMB35,397,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 2.63%
(2014: 2.66%) per annum.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 6/]
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8 KREW= 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2015 2014
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®W1A1H At 1 January 242,439 249,365
NE Additions - 32
HEBEME BERZE Transfer from property, plant and
(Pf5E7) equipment (Note 7) 125,802 4,955
e (fisk27) Depreciation (Note 27) (18,665) (11,913)
W12A31H At 31 December 349,576 242,439
W12 A31 A MR A Cost as at 31 December 454,652 297,597
RETTE Accumulated depreciation (105,076) (55,158)
R12A31 B FE Net book amount as at 31 December 349,576 242,439
WEMEMR LS T8RS WmIIER The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiang Su,
BRE  WERBBHA40FM50FH L Sichuan and Guangdong Province and erected on land with
e lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
REKREMEZTEECTALRA W& Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
mE[HMmAR] - charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.
2015 2014
AR¥T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE WA Rental income 103,797 64,986
REEERSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
BEELERE that generated rental income (13,591) (11,590)
90,206 53,396

/l 62 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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REWE (F)

BREWMEZREERAFEHIDT

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment

properties are set out as follows:

2015 2014

AR®T T ARBEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IREE Carrying amount 349,576 242,439
NE Fair value 449,528 330,912

MR2015%F K2014F12A31H 2 A F 1A
DIREEE 2 BT LWEXRTAEH
R ABBRERE (FE3E)FERMRE
RIBEREEE -

ERERTABERABIERZ AFE
(FE3E)NEFR:

The fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

TUBERARE

Unobservable inputs

20155128318

AR AEE HE BRI =
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2015 Rental value  Discount rate
(AR®TT) (AR®F )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
WEA
7 95,313 5 %13,276 per annum 10%
Plant A
5B
99,695 4§ %15,935 per annum 10%
Plant B
WEC
142,849 #%19,729 per annum 10%
Plant C
\D D
B 13,144 S %10,681 per annum 10%
Plant D
/N
98,527 45 %6,964 per annum 10%
Office building

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 68
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8 WREWX (&) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

TR R AR
Unobservable inputs
2014%F12A831H

AEN N¥E HE BRI =X
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2014 Rental value Discount rate
(AR¥FT) (AR®FT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
5 A
109,598 12,493 per annum 10%
Plant A
‘D B
BE 122,249 F 416,206 per annum 10%
Plant B
ELYN 5
, o 99,065 & 46,162 per annum 10%
Office building

/I 64 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BEEE 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB
Computer
software
ARBETFTT
RMB’000
M20145F1818 At 1 January 2014
DN Cost 39,863
2T EH Accumulated amortisation (23,292)
Z25RE Accumulated impairment -
R FRE Net book amount 16,571
HZE2014512H831B L FE Year ended 31 December 2014
FYREFRE Opening net book amount 16,571
NE Additions 17,329
B (fEr27) Amortisation (Note 27) (5,286)
FRIREFHR Closing net book amount 28,614
M2014F12831H At 31 December 2014
DN Cost 57,192
REH S Accumulated amortisation (28,578)
2EPRE Accumulated impairment -
IRMEFEE Net book amount 28,614
B Z2015F12A31ALFE Year ended 31 December 2015
FYREFRR Opening net book amount 28,614
=1 Additions 20,919
5 (P E27) Amortisation (Note 27) (15,648)
FRIREFHE Closing net book amount 33,885
A2015F12831H At 31 December 2015
DN Cost 78,111
RET Accumulated amortisation (44,226)
ZEHRE Accumulated impairment =
R FRE Net book amount 33,885

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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9 |IEEE (&) 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
ERBGc#EESNE [1THAX] The amortisation of computer software has been charged
RIHERMSHERRZ] 3% to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
A RHARKET, 718,000t & A expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB7,718,000
R #7,930,0007T (2014F : AR and RMB7,930,000 (2014:RMB4,550,000 and RMB736,000),
4,550,0007T &2 A R #736,0007T) ° respectively.

10 RESZZEARNRE 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD
EEEEGBRERANEENT The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2015 2014
AR%T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt N B Z () Interests in associates (a) 1,199,333 1,108,406
AELEZERD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 422,392 437,302
Mm12A31H At 31 December 1,621,725 1,545,708
EANERERNBENT The amounts recognised in the income statement are as
follows:
2015 2014
AR®T T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAR B & R ADE T (a) Share of profits of associates (a) 94,126 96,085
EEAEERERT Share of net of profits/(losses) of
(E518) %% () joint ventures (b) 18,819 (11,108)
HE12A31HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 112,945 84,977

/I 66 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 RERZEZARNKRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
REE N NT 2 ER (@) Interests in associates

REBERR 2R 2 EEBHWT The movements in interests in associates are as follows:

2015 2014

ARET AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

W1 A1H At 1 January 1,108,406 1,015,520

FEAG 5 7 Share of profits 94,126 96,085

2R S Dividends received (3,199) (3,199)

»W12A31H At 31 December 1,199,333 1,108,406

MR2015F12A318 » A& B 2 B The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
ENBIFBIT 2R AR IR December 2015, all of which equity method is used to
Bk o account for, are set out as follows:

EMRLER
ARER wHRAH BREXR/BRA AEEELRE FEEH

Paid-up

Country/place and capital Equity interest

Company name date of incorporation /Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2015 2014

LtHAFE:

Listed:

BAIL T REFRAT HEER AR 16.30% 16.30%  REER AT REE
B BBRATE 20016A26H 392,600,007 BRERR WHEER
(TZ@HE]) ZEE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.”) (“Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple

juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.

FEWRR:

Unlisted:

SEBRRROEBART  PELR AR 47.83% 4783%  AERBERH
(TSELRR]) 2005610A 286 991,833,7767C

(Jinmailang Beverage Beijing, PRC, RMB991,833,776 Manufacturing and sale of
Corporate Limited”) 28 October 2005 beverages

(“Jinmailang Corporate”)

- RXEBIAARRERERD
BEDXEEEL-

*

The English name represents the best effort by

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 REBEARNKRE (

=) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@ REEQITzREZE (&) (a) Interests in associates (Continued)

REERERE SRR Y0 ER
MENT(REEE ABRYE

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
shares of the associated companies’ assets, liabilities

i) and results in aggregate is as follows:
2015 2014
AREBT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEBGBR Summary of balance sheet
EREEE Non-current assets 1,427,966 1,469,953
MENEE Current assets 412,682 448,982
mEE Total assets 1,840,648 1,918,935
FEmBEE Non-current liabilities 93,087 34,241
mENBE Current liabilities 548,228 776,288
BaE Total liabilities 641,315 810,529
FEE Net assets 1,199,333 1,108,406
BEHZEEWMARE Summary of comprehensive income
e Revenue 1,368,498 1,525,766
CEER 2 BRFI%EF Post-tax profits from operations 94,126 96,085
Hab2HEKA Other comprehensive income = -
ZHEW AL Total comprehensive income 94,126 96,085

/] 68 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 RERZEFARNEKE (8F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b)

AEEREER (b) Interests in joint ventures

REELEZRBZZEBHNT:

The movements in interests in joint ventures are as

follows:

2015 2014
AR®T AR¥ETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January 437,302 484,596
NE Additions 24,243 308
WA RE Decrease in investments - (27,544)

EEAHE QA Transfer to a subsidiary (Note 36)

(Fff5E36) (55,472) -
JEMRSEH A, (518 ) /F 58 Share of net of profits/(losses) 18,819 (11,108)
B AR S Dividend received (2,500) (8,950)
W12A31H At 31 December 422,392 437,302

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 69
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10 REBEZARNKRE (&)

(b)

160

ReEehE R (&)

MN2015F12A31H  AEF 2 &
B (HIFELETI AR ET

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as at

31 December 2015, all of which are unlisted and equity

BR)FFBEMT method is used to account for, are set out as follows:
AMRLER
AEER WHRAH BrREX AEEEERE TEXH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2015 2014

FNI(EERERA% BT AR #1,000,0007C 50% 50% ~ REAEBRRERERS
REEBERAA 2008%7A18H
([EReIxREER])

(United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB1,000,000 Investment management
Management Co., Ltd. ) 18 July 2008 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

EMERHHIEBERAR PEEM 19,060,000% 7 42% 42%  EERERE BEKR-
(TEmER]) 20097 A24R e 1S

(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, USD19,060,000 Production of various
Industries Co., Ltd. *) 24 July 2009 types of beverage
(“Guilin Ziquan”) including fruit,

vegetable, tea and
coffee etc.

Greater China F&B FEHE 10,700% 7T 50% 50% @ REEE
Capital Partners Ltd. 20084 A 16H
(“Greater China F&B")

Cayman Islands, UsD10,700 Investment management
16 April 2008

REZIH-—CEERAR FEHE AR 50% 50% @ HEXEZBER
([RERI]) 2011%7H298 282,000,0007T

(Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 29 July 2011 types of plastic
(“Wuhan Zijiang”) products

SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHE 500,000% 7T 50% 50% REEE
(“SMSCC”) 2012411 A28H

Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management

28 November 2012

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 RESZZEARNRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
RegEbxzER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
EMRLER
ARER HER A BRELX AEBELRE TEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2015 2014
SMS Investment Heks 500,000% 7T 50% 50% REER
Management Co., Ltd. 2013F1H2H
(“SMS Investment
Management”)
Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
2 January 2013
ERAMARRELE HR B A N AR 39.74% 39.74%  RAERE
(TEBRRM]) 2009F4R13H 516,500,0007T
(China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB516,500,000 Investment management
Investments®) 13 April 2009
(“China F&B”)
EERRHHIRERAR THES 19,000,000% 7T 35% 3%  EEREEHRH
[EE%R]) 2013574238
HEEXRFHIE Yichang, PRC, USD19,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
BRAAF 23 July 2013 beverages
(Ziquan Beverage
industries CO., LTD.*)
SMS Consumer Fund LP.  HE8S 14,720,000% 7T 23.44% 23.44% REER
(“SMSfund”) 2012612 A18H
Cayman Islands, USD14,720,000 Investment management
18 December 2012
* BXEZBIBAARABEEERN * The English name represents the best effort by

BEPXEEEL-

HZE2015F12A31HIEFEHR

BEBERIENOERS
[E1SMS Capital Co.,

E B
Ltd#E— &

B ANREED 754, 0007 K B4 R R
HMIZEBERARE—FTETEAR

#21,489,0007T °

TS L2 h g A
BAHKEBEEARE-

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

The additions to the interests in joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2015 mainly included
RMB2,754,000 of further capital injection to SMS
Capital Co., Ltd. and RMB21,489,000 of further capital
injection to Ziquan Beverage industries Co., Ltd.

No individual financial information of joint ventures was

considered material impact to the Group.

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 HEZZEARNKRE (F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REeEbLFEzER (E&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
AEEELEEELEZHBER A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
BMEWT: share of the joint ventures in aggregate is as follows:

2015 2014
ARET R AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEAGE Summary of balance sheet
& Current
RehBEeZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 129,887 131,331
HEtmBEE Other current assets
(TBER:) (excluding cash) 86,752 54,128
ME)EEBLE Total current assets 216,639 185,459
TRIBME Financial liabilities
(T"BEENESER) (excluding trade payables) = 2,500
HitREBEE Other current liabilities
(BIEENE SRR (including trade payables) 62,022 42,659
MENBEARE Total current liabilities 62,022 45,159
e ED Non-current
B Assets 316,707 332,584
THAE Financial liabilities 47,003 35,582
EMaE Other liabilities 1,929 -
EmBEERRE Total non-current liabilities 48,932 35,582
FEE Net assets 422,392 437,302

/] 62 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 BERZAERNKRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

b) REELEER (B) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

2015 2014
ARBTT ARBETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEHmealkAE Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 383,165 308,880
e R Depreciation and amortization (26,893) (13,790)
FE Wz Interest income 1,565 2,029
B Interest expenses (2,082) (328)
gs R 75 R  (K518)  Profits/(losses) from operations 26,232 (4,139)
FrigBiMx Income tax expenses (7,413) (6,969)

BB ZRTBE%F,  Post-tax profits/(losses)

(EB#E) from operations 18,819 (11,108)
HEirs W Other comprehensive income - 993
mAERF (E8)BE Total comprehensive profits/(losses) 18,819 (10,115)
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11 IHEEESREE 11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2015 2014
ARET R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1A At 1 January 192,809 192,026
NE Additions 51,665 -
e Disposals (733) -
SFAHMEEWKZE Z AFE  Net fair value changes taken to other
BE)F5E (H5E20) comprehensive income (Note 20)
— G ET — Haisheng Juice 3,283 783
—SEEILFLE - Wondersun Dairy (20,000) -
W12A31H At 31 December 227,024 192,809
HE2015F 12318 1L F & 1 a4 The additions to the available-for-sale financial assets during
TECREERRERTEILIEE - the year ended 31 December 2015 included RMB51,665,000
FEE AR¥51,665,0007T ° of further capital injection to Wondersun Dairy.
AEBZAIHHESREENRATE The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
AR WHHAT at fair value and include the following:
2015 2014
ARET R ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EmES Listed securities
HHRA-FE Haisheng Juice — Hong Kong 15,359 12,076
EETES Unlisted securities
SeiEE Il FLE Wondersun Dairy 211,665 180,000
Hh Others - 733
211,665 180,733
227,024 192,809
S P! Market value of listed securities 15,359 12,076

/I 64 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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AftHESMERE (&)

LtHRSZAFERBEREEA 2™
BEMEE -

HZE2015F12A31H AEERE A
REAERERAR(EARSTEHE
37,800,000/% (20144 : 37,800,000
BR) - HE AR ERA2.99% (2014
F:2.99%) °

AEEHBREREIEATELAERS
BRAFE ([FEZELILEET)I% (20145
9% ) 2w BEWLILEAR ETHRE
BlAM%¥ - B2006FHELEERBEEI
¥ER -TEUAERLETREZATF
BE2ERRAERTISE (KH73.3)
HESBHZMEMET -

BRIABTTAHEZ LM ESFIN B rl
HESREEBAARKE

11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2014: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.99% (2014: 2.99%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2015.

The Group holds 9% (2014: 9%) equity interests in 2 &)L
BeEIUFLERD AR LA (Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.*) (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

Other than the listed securities which are denominated in
HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB.

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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12 EZEFREH 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
RIEMSREENBEEMSHREED The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
W income tax liabilities is as follow:

2015 2014
ARMET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFMSHEE Deferred income tax assets
—12{8 A Wi = — Deferred income tax assets to be
BEFSHEE recovered within 12 months 144,996 138,104
—kBE121E A& B 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTEHEE recovered after more than
12 months 183,141 183,777
328,137 321,881
BESHAR Deferred income tax liabilities
— 12 AREE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEFSEHAR settled within 12 months 5,165 40,126
—BB1I2EAEEE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
EIEFTEHEaE settled after more than 12 months 192,185 148,719
197,350 188,845
BEFSHERE F8 Deferred income tax assets, net 130,787 133,036

/I 66 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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12 REMREH (&) 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
RILFEHRE 22T - The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:
2015 2014
AR®T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1 A1H At 1 January 133,036 34,729
(%) FEAERARE R (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
(MI3E30) income statement (Note 30) (4,899) 98,481
U iE — KB A E (Ki7E36) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) (2,350) -
BEMEmEmkETA Credited/(charged) to other
(HB%) (BFtzE20) comprehensive income (Note 20) 5,000 (174)
M12A31H At 31 December 130,787 133,036
FNERLEMBSHEERAEBENES (K The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
FrRFE—FBERE S ) T during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
RILEFMESHERE Deferred income tax assets
e
SREE
BEHERR RERE EitEX ATENTE HEFEIE EEEREZE @it
Downward
adjustment
in fair value
of available-
Impairment for-sale
provision of Depreciation Accrued financial Taxloss  Asset basis
assets of equipment expenses assets benefit difference Total

ARETR  ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETT ARETR
RMB'OOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000

201451 A1R At 1 January 2014 5,097 2,587 112,735 1,846 69,453 - 191,718
A/ (IR EEkER Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statements (299) 1,513 (3,498) - 114,440 18,175 130,337
Nk E M2 E R Charged to other comprehensive income - - - (174) - - (174
"2014F 128318 At 31 December 2014 4,804 4,100 109,237 1,672 183,893 18,175 321,881
FA/ IR EEkER Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statements (837) (983) (3,656) - 6,732 - 1,256
SAEMREKE Credited to other comprehensive income - - - 5,000 = = 5,000
#2015F 128318 At 31 December 2015 3,967 3,117 105,581 6,672 190,625 18,176 328,137
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12

168

ELEFEH ()

12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

EIEFTSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
BB AVENE RERGFE GERRELR(E @t
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Fair value  depreciation  of borrowing
tax gains  of equipment costs Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M201441 7318 At 1 January 2014 17,251 139,738 - - 156,989
%/ (Gt A& AR Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statements - (4,135) 35,991 - 31,856
M20144612A318 At 31 December 2014 17,251 135,603 35,991 - 188,845
U —R M B2 A (B7E36) Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 36) - 2,350 - - 2,350
1%/ (Gt A)&AMER  Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statements - (4,107 (11,900) 22,162 6,155
M2015412 4318 At 31 December 2015 17,251 133,846 24,091 22,162 197,350

REMSHEAERTERUEBBRRE
ERBEMNEREAMNBANRREIAS
B THIER R T AR  ANE @I KR
2015512 A31 A 7] A LAK 85 B 18 JE R A
WA 2 B 18 B 18 49 A R 16262,899,000
JC (20144 : A R #220,305,0007T ) i
RIERE BT 15 T & 2 89 A R #65,725,000
70 (20144« A R#55,076,0007T) °
o BB 4 A R ¥20,364,000T * A R
29,455,0007T * A R #58,502,0007T * A
R #76,934,0007T 2 AR ¥E77,644,0007T
ZHRIBEEBR2016FREESATE
Tk

Annual Report 2015 %

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB65,725,000 (2014: RMB55,076,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB262,899,000 (2014: RMB220,305,000) as at 31
December 2015 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB20,364,000, RMB29,455,000, RMB58,502,000,
RMB76,934,000 and RMB77,644,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2016.
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13 REHEIsWEMITE 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BATEEB
AHE  BREE

e SREE SREE e
Available- Financial

for-sale assets at fair
financial value through

Receivables assets  profit or loss Total
GREEEBRFTIMNEE Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
$2015F12A31H As at 31 December 2015
AEEESREE (H511) Avalable-for-sale financial assets
(Note 11) - 227,024 - 227,024
e E SR (MEH15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 529,198 - - 529,198
Be R EMmEYRGR Deposits and other receivables
(TEREEAT) (excluding prepayments) 193,406 - - 193,406
Be LR (M3E18)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 18) 2,919,329 - - 2,919,329
Mt Total 3,641,933 227,024 - 3,868,957
20145 12A31R As at 31 December 2014
AEHESREE (M:F11) Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 11) - 192,809 - 192,809
RATEEBIEHZE,  Financial assets at fair value
SEEE (ME17) through profit or loss (Note 17) - - 86,710 86,710
FERE SEF (ME15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 487,418 - - 487,418
He REMEYGIR Deposits and other receivables
(TEEEAT) (excluding prepayments) 868,723 - - 868,723
e RFITHH (FIFE18)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 18) 2,128,121 - - 2128121
Feh Total 3,484,262 192,809 86,710 3,763,781
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13 IRERHEIPHWEFMITE (&) 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
BAVEER
BEREe HttREBHREX
tHAE HENSRAR @t
Liabilities  Other financial
at fair value liabilities
through measured at
profit or loss  amortised cost Total
REEERBRATNARE Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet
#2015612A31H As at 31 December 2015
EREZEFREE (HF21) Trade and bills payable (Note 21) - 1,229,015 1,229,015
HtENTERETER Other payables and accruals
(TefEepeR) (excluding non-financial liabilties) - 1,851,930 1,851,930
TEEBIE (MHF24) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 24) 2,138 - 2,138
&8 (ME23) Borrowings (Note 23) - 4,254,316 4,254,316
Hip R E A (H5E22) Other long-term payables (Note 22) - 439,149 439,149
@Et Total 2,138 7,774,410 7,776,548
#2014F12A31H As at 31 December 2014
EREZERREE (M:21) Trade and bills payable (Note 21) - 1,054,204 1,054,204
HttENREREFTER Other payables and accruals
(TEEFERER) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 1,896,678 1,896,678
TESBIA (M) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 24) 314 - 314
B8 (ME23) Borrowings (Note 23) - 5,836,368 5,336,368
Hib REEAFE (F22) Other long-term payables (Note 22) - 237,985 237,985
@it Total 314 9,025,235 9,025,549
/l 70 fﬁ—ﬁ%ﬂfﬂ B2 8% 5 BR 2 & Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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14 F8 14 INVENTORIES
2015 2014
ARET R ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 400,530 332,279
2 m Work in progress 69,439 81,738
B & Finished goods 691,104 496,920
575 Consumables 206,644 218,369
1,367,717 1,129,306
R AT AEERARREMFAT The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
ZIFERAY B ANRE13,992,000,000 included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
gt (201445 : A K ¥#15,208,000,000 approximately RMB13,992 million (2014: RMB15,208 million).
JL) °
RELE2015F12 A31H I F E 5l ss The Group reversed the inventory provision of approximately
FEZHAERFEMS A5E2H RMB1,134,000 (2014: RMB5,318,000) (Note 27) for the year
OFE#EEYAEAREL,134,0007T ended 31 December 2015 in respect of the write-down of
(20144 : A R#5,318,0007T) (M #% inventories to their net realisable values. These amounts have
27) R EFEFIHECFARTRZHE been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income statement.
RN ] H e

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ,] 7/]
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15 ERE SRR

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2015 2014
AR® T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EWEIE=FEHEN Trade receivables from independent
third parties 494,288 470,780
R BB Less: provision for impairment (8,573) (10,207)
JEUCBIE = Z 5K Trade receivables from independent
F1E third parties, net 485,715 460,573
FEU B R 5 B B AR K Trade receivables from related parties
(MFEE37(0)) (Note 37(b)) 43,483 26,845
JEWE 5 8RR 1A Trade receivables, net 529,198 487,418

AEEBERTFEFORKEIOXRZ(E
A ER (20144 : 60K E90K ) - EW B

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2014: 60 to 90 days). The ageing

SERNERR TN analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2015 2014
AR¥T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE SR 1858 Trade receivables, gross

—9Q0K AR — Within 90 days 495,146 457,173
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 38,348 38,476
—1812365K — 181 to 365 days 1,356 1,742
——FNUE — Over one year 2,921 234
537,771 497,625

MR2015F12A31H * AR#2,370,000
T (20145 - E)MERE SERERED
BHEARRE - BRRES R —RES
AE R AEE @G - mikBxE
B HAREE ] LAE U - B R E W E
SEFARER BB —F -

172
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As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of
RMB2,370,000 (2014: Nil) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a related party of the Group from whom
there is no significant financial difficulty and based on past
experience, the overdue amount can be recovered. The aging
of these trade receivables are over one year.

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



e B R AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 BWEZ KR (&)

4 5 [ 5 U0 55 85 30 B 8 DA 5
O

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2015 2014
AR®F T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEWE ZEER - 48 Trade receivables, gross
— AR - RMB 532,422 493,680
—E7T - UsD 2,166 2,242
—T - HKD 3,183 1,703
537,771 497,625

REEH BRESEFEAERAR
(=8

S+
o

-
i

20151283180 HH AR #105.98
gt (2014F : ARM101.38 8 L)
CEWZESEREEEE MR E
EH s BEeBNRARKS6EET
(2014F : ARB10.2BET) - @RIE
Ak RBBM BB EEFZT G
WA B THIBARBEERRRATE
NEFETE RAAKEEFPAEEE
PE AR R - L R AR A BRI
ST

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
RMB105.9 million (2014: RMB101.3 million) were
overdue and the amount of provision for impairment was
approximately RMB8.6 million (2014: RMB10.2 million).
The impairment is firstly assessed individually for individual
significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining
balances are grouped for collective assessment according to
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers
are of similar credit risk characteristics. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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15 BWESERX (&) 15 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

2015 2014
AR®TR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE SR 1858 Trade receivables, gross
—90K AR — Within 90 days 65,724 60,889
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 38,348 38,476
—1812365K — 181 to 365 days 1,356 1,742
——F U E - Over one year 551 234
105,979 101,341

AEBERWERZ [1THEAX ] T #R
FEME 5Bk 2 BB - REREZ

The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income

gEhanT statements. The movements in provision for impairment are
as follows:
2015 2014
AR®T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 10,207 7,115
58 T AT U [E] 2 R U AR SR Receivables written off as uncollectible - (591)
FEWE ZRFRE (Reversal)/provision for impairment of

(BB, B (KIsE27) trade receivables (Note 27) (1,634) 3,683
M®12H318 At 31 December 8,573 10,207

RREAH AEBAARZEERR
A E Rt 2 FEWCE 5 BR A 2 BRI B
BLER - AEEHES A T ERRE
RPER-

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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16 ANRE -REREMEWKRT 16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

b1 | RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
AR¥T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TETIGER R AR 18 Prepaid value added tax and other taxes 298,844 387,535
H b B A 3R I8 K R R A Other prepayments and receivables 165,662 194,990
TR RIE-FEN T Prepayments — advance payments
R 2 FIA to suppliers 48,520 18,583
JiE Ui B Bt 75 7R IE Amounts due from related parties
(K¥7E37(0)) (Note 37(b)) 47,428 369,278
K2 ERIZS Guarantee deposits for purchases - 338,685
560,454 1,309,071
B FERNEREE Less: non-current portion (12,111) (52,283)
BN ER &R > Current portion 548,343 1,256,788
KB ZEREZSEHE2014F12 431 The guarantee deposits for purchases as at 31 December
BirmZEILAEZIMANEREZS N 2014 represented deposits paid to Wondersun Dairy
RIER2010F 11 AT L 2 Wik BB o2 to secure the purchases of the milk powder produced
ELAEEEZND ERZEARE by Wondersun Dairy pursuant to an agreement entered
287,020,0007T R2015F2 A 72 - &4 into in November 2010. The guarantee deposits of
A R51,665,0007T C #E R A A 5T RMB287,020,000 had been received in February 2015 and
ENIEE—FEE the balance of RMB51,665,000 had been applied to make

further capital contribution to Wondersun Dairy.

REEH EHAREFTEMNENFIE- All the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
e RhHEMEWRERROERDFHEERL dominated in RMB. Their carrying accounts approximate their
NFEEE- fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 76
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BE
R2014F12AB1H AT B 2L AT E
FREZCECERNEEAEKAES
& DR20156F 28 HE -

18 RERMITHEER

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 December 2014 represented investment in monetary fund
which was fully disposed in 2015.

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2015 2014

AR¥T ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R RIBITHFR Cash at bank and on hand 2,919,329 2,128,121
R EHE R Less: Time deposits (1,441,792) (324,099)
SR HIER 1T 17 3K Restricted bank deposits (4,220) -
HehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,473,317 1,804,022

A2015F12A318 A EEFRET
77 FUA R A £ B 17 B B N T

FERE A3 18E (20144 : 0.60[F ) °

176
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As at 31 December 2015, the effective weighted average rate
on deposits of the Group placed with banks and deposits of
the Group was 3.18% (2014: 0.60%) per annum.
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RERBITHEER (&) 18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
72015512 A31H » A& E 1) 817 K As at 31 December 2015, the Group has time deposits of
AN REA,441,792,0007T (20144 © A RMB1,441,792,000 (2014: RMB324,099,000) which had
K #324,099,0007T) - [REIEI A B =@ terms with original maturity over three months and within one
AU E BR—FREIH- year.
2015128318 FRHETER A As at 31 December 2015, the restricted bank deposits
FRIBTIEAZEHASEREEEMRR represented deposits at banks pledged as security for the
B EBHFR (20145F 1 f8) o issue of letter of credit facilities and bills of the Group (2014:
nil).
B2015F12A31H REe KBRS E As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents were
WA T B 5HE - denominated in the following currencies:
2015 2014
AR¥T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—AR% - RMB 893,372 1,575,061
—%7T - UsD 573,456 222,845
—BTT - HKD 2,480 2,183
—HAfth - Others 4,009 3,933
1,473,317 1,804,022
R2015F12A31H  EHFERUNNLTE As at 31 December 2015, time deposits were denominated in
KEETE - the following currencies:
2015 2014
AR T AR¥EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—AR# - RMB 1,402,037 323,325
—%7T - UsD 38,962 -
—H A — Others 793 774
1,441,792 324,099

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 77
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18 RERMITHER (&

) 18

R2015F12A31H SR E B 1TF XK
AR E-

ARBEMYIFS/ARNBERTS A H
Rz % - BARE LB EINE R
E AP B IR HNA S o B R R 2 S
BEE 5 761 AR R K2 AR B P AR BR

19 BRAK KRG % E Ik

(a)

178

PR A R IR 40 5 1B B

19

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, restricted bank deposits are

denominated in RMB.

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the

international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign

currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject

to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated

by the PRC authorities.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT

(@) Share capital and share premium account

EE
Authorised

EEREE R BRAHE

Number of Share capital

ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to

THET ARBFT

HKD'000 RMB’000

R2014F1 1B E At 1 January 2014 il
2015F12A31H 31 December 2015 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BRTRAR
Issued and fully paid
PG B& RAfE  RHEBER Eh
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium

shares capital  equivalent to account Total

T ARETT ARETT ARETT
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

®201451 A1A At 1 January 2014 3,599,445,000 35,994 34,047 2,243,980 2,218,021
BOEER Issue of ordinary shares 719,889,000 7,199 5,717 2,585,919 2,591,636
#20145F12531A At 31 December 2014 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
#2015512631H At 31 December 2015 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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19 BRARKMDGER (&

(b)

B8

ANAE MR E2007F11 523
HeEERABRMBBZER
Rt E ([Zar &) - BEZE
BRI PRITZBROHBETEE
#352,681,000/% * B0 AN 2 & K
2007128178 (B A2 A K&k
REEZFT EHE B ) FTETiRGm 8
HA10% s EETE R LB
Rz —BEBHARLARS
HAFETSHiE20% BB A
BB IR L ERER R TE
PR—FRTEEBTF&at
BB IFER B EE2017F12716
E| o

BHZE2015F12HA31H B E B K
EREZAEEL -

19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

(b)

g—i

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on
23 November 2007. The total number of shares which
may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed
352,681,000 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company
as at 17 December 2007 (ie. the listing date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). The
general vesting period for the options granted under the
Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of grant
date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of
the grate of the option. The Scheme will remain in force
until 16 December 2017.

Up to 31 December 2015, no share options have been
granted under the Scheme.

%P B2 1% BR 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 HthRBERRE&F 20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS
EXfiE DT ERE EERE BEREA &t
Capital Fair value Statutory Retained
reserves reserves reserves earnings Total

ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2014E181R 2 8 Balance at 1 January 2014 1,552,759 (12,810) 745,510 3,578,682 5,864,141
FERF Profit for the year - - - 285,537 285,537

P ESREAE L ATERS Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets

—&% (1) - gross (Note 11) - 783 - - 783

~ B (Fi5E12) - tax (Note 12) - (174) - - (174)
BAEEERE Appropriation to statutory

reserves - - 110,292 (110,292) -

B 2013 2 I8 Dividends relating to 2013, paid (183,212) - - - (183,212)

R2014F128310 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2014 1,369,547 (12,201) 855,802 3,763,927 5,967,075

FEEF Profit for the year - - - 834,505 834,505

HNESREEZ D TEER Fair value losses on available-for-

sale financial assets

— % (F5E11) - gross (Note 11) - (16,717) - - (16,717)
—HBE (12) - tax (Note 12) - 5,000 - - 5,000
BRRZEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,261 (130,261) -
DX M014F 2B Dividends relating to 2014, paid (57,123) - - - (57,123)
R2015512A31 B 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2015 1,312,424 (23,918) 986,063 4,458,171 6,732,740

/I 80 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 HitvfERERERR (&)

(@

(c)

A BER

ARARNBABBREREART
By LRz ARREEITE A
RESR LT 2EBZTE AR
FZDREAERFRE -

RRASHEEREENR  ZFH
ABBRA 0K T AR A B &
BA-

DN ERE

AEERAFEREREIHREE
EMEERAFEED 2B

EEME

R B SRS BRI E
HAR R AERIES
BLAT AL & 5T B TS R R AR o
#1005 FM CIEE 88 T I 45 2
o REHATIRR ) IR R RRE
B - BRI A B
UEES

20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

181
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20 HitvfEREERR (&)

()

EERE (&)

ERINBBELCENMANELRXE
MARZEF BB AR - TS
FEBRREMN DR ARAE
MAFE Z10%RIEEATERHA
BE EEAERHATESEIQA
Z T E A50% £ BIBAE
E— BB UIN BEEESE
ZBiEE  WERR AU —E L
1) B B A58 12 08 F1) 88 A B T 48 A %
RBESLEBREE - (ERFI
BEKLE ©REMALE B
BAR mEEBEFECHIBE
A] LA % B0 TE R B 1208 A 60 —
FE L1 2 BB ACEE R 18 o

ETRBLESREARARHL
AN - WAL A A AR
EMAREA

21 BN EZKRX

20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

()

Statutory reserves (Continued)

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

21 TRADE PAYABLES

2015 2014
ARET R AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERTE S RN Trade payables
—BYE=F - to independent third parties 986,342 875,956
— AR - to related parties 242,673 178,248
1,229,015 1,054,204

182
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BAE SRR (& 21 TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
HEBETAEE 2 ERHBET RI0 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
KELEKR - ER B SRR ZEHR T 30 to 45 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
™ follows:
2015 2014
AR T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JERTE SRR Trade payables
—30K AR — Within 30 days 971,428 796,153
—31E90X — 31-90 days 187,948 173,610
—91E180K - 91-180 days 43,782 66,971
—1812365K — 181 to 365 days 16,848 10,963
——FE - Over 1 year 9,009 6,507
1,229,015 1,054,204
ENESEREUARBHE - BEZ All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
FHERGEERABEEATEES - amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet
dates.
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Annual Report 2015 F#§



e MR WK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 HhENRERETER 22 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REJHENMNK Advance receipts from customers 1,506,546 738,002
REREERY Accruals for promotion and
K FEET & A advertising expenses 901,767 757,520
RERBREMNE Payables for purchase of equipment 466,196 563,935
R T& RAEH Salary and welfare payables 421,799 299,738
HEREREPINNIZS Deposits from suppliers and customers 367,044 384,713
Uit B JE <P 5RIB (B3 5E36) Acquisition payables (Note 36) 28,654 -
H At AT FIE R BT E A Other payables and accruals 583,250 520,939
4,275,256 3,264,847
A IEBNEREL Less: non-current portion (439,149) (237,985)
BIEAER 5 Current portion 3,836,107 3,026,862
HEmENFIBEREFERAUARE All the other payables and accruals are dominated in RMB.
FTE-RNEER  HM B RIB R EST Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as at the
ERAZEEAERENFEEE- balance sheet dates.

/I 84 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 %



e B R AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 £ &

23 BORROWINGS
2015 2014
AR®T T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEH Non-current
RITEE &KW (H5E@) Bank borrowings, unsecured (Note (a)) 665,000 1,561,569
FET =& (M 7E(D)) Notes payable (Note (b)) 3,000,000 3,000,000
3,665,000 4,561,569
B B EIRENEIE Less: current portion of notes payable (1,000,000) -
KA R current portion of long-term
RITIE BB » unsecured bank borrowings - (281,474)
158 Total 2,665,000 4,280,095
=5 Current
HHRTEE S Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 589,316 1,274,799
o A R BVEE Add: current portion of notes payable 1,000,000 -
i B 4K 7 current portion of long-term
RITIE BB » unsecured bank borrowings - 281,474
1,589,316 1,556,273
fEE#EE Total borrowings 4,254,316 5,836,368

% — % F B R F R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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23 fBE5 (&)

(@)

186

M2014F12 B31 A EEK IR
ERITIEE ARK1,561,569,000
TEEBRERBEARRQREREET
VUEEBAERBRE RS ([&
&) X EM221,000,000%
7T (9% AR ¥1,352,299,000
TRTER -BREBERZ &
&= B % £ 5% 250,000,0003%
THRFHERRE -

REE2015F12A31B ILEE -
RNEFDEEBENEHEBA
ERWTHBEAERRME -

MR20135F6 7 - RABIREAEIT
KeFEABANREI0EBILZ35EE
B-ZEAH=F Wik MK2016
FeHAGHZHEE-

R2014F1 7 - RRABIR B EEHIT
AeEAARBI0EBILZI6EE
B-BRABH=F Wi K2017
F1R23AEHERE-

BOIASBERAEARBSETZ
35ERIECZEE -FEBHAA
H=F AT H2017F8H28
B &2019F8 H28H &2 8B € -

R2014%F8 A  ARRD RN G &
Iy=

% — ¥ EE R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

The non-current bank borrowings, unsecured as at 31
December 2014 of RMB1,561,569,000 mainly included
bank loans amounting to USD221,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,352,299,000) that were drawn
down under a joint loans facility agreement (“Facility
Agreement”) entered into by the Company and a
syndicate of banks. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement,
the Group was granted a five-year term loan facility
amounting to USD250,000,000.

During the year ended at 31 December 2015, the
Group fully repaid the joint loans in advance and
terminated the joint loans facility.

In June 2013, the Company issued 3.5% notes at a
principal value of RMB1 billion in Hong Kong. The notes
have a three years term and will be fully repayable by 6
June 2016.

In January 2014, the Company issued 3.6% notes at
a principal value of RMB1 billion in Taiwan. The notes
have a three years term and will be fully repayable by 23
January 2017.

In August 2014, the Company issued 3.5% and 3.9%
notes at principal value of RMBO0.5 billion and RMBO0.5
billion respectively in Taiwan. The notes have a three
and five years term and will be fully repayable by 28
August 2017 and 28 August 2019, respectively.
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23 B8 (&) 23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
AEEBRBEZEZFBHOT The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:
2015 2014
AR¥T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Less than 1 year 1,589,316 1,556,273
—EWF Between 1 and 2 years 2,165,000 2,127,120
WERF Between 2 and 5 years 500,000 2,152,975
BER%E Total borrowings 4,254,316 5,836,368
REER BECREEEEATER The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
o values as at the balance sheet dates.
AEBRARRIZEEETDER T The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings were
HE¥EE: denominated in the following currencies:
2015 2014
AR¥ T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RVB 3,864,700 3,453,310
ETT usD 389,616 2,383,058
4,254,316 5,836,368
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23 B8 (&) 23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
BEHEEAZEBREMZET R EHT 40 The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
™ balance sheet dates were set out as follows:

2015 2014
AR®T T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITEE  EIKHE Bank borrowing, unsecured
— AR - RMB 4.05% 3.56%
—%7T -UsD 1.00% 1.23%
FER R Notes payable
—AR% -RVB 3.60% 3.60%
REEBEE THRRIRCEBITEERS The Group have the following undrawn bank borrowing
Z : facilities:
2015 2014
AR¥T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBAE: At floating rate:
—F N EI| B — Expiring within one year 5,821,669 6,389,175
—F LA FEIHR - Expiring beyond one year 1,547,000 1,881,407
7,368,669 8,270,582

/] 88 % — 1> % 7 B % B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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fTEE€mI A 24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2015 2014
ARBT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BfE: Liabilities:
—iRHANE S 49 - Forward foreign exchange contracts 2,138 314

FA-ARAFIEHINES K B
HHTAETR YESBRREREER
BfE-

NE ZE2015512831 8 Ik F &
MARERZEHIINESEH 2BENR
4 % /21,000,000 7T (20144 :
140,000,000 7t ) ° 78 [ H 4 F] 1§ —
FRE] (MsEes) R mRUKREREBIE
AR #2,138,0007T (2014F : AR
314,0007T) °

During the year, the Company entered into forward foreign
exchange contracts which were non-hedging derivatives and
were classified as current assets or liabilities.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2015 were USD
21,000,000 (2014: USD140,000,000) and an unrealised loss
of RMB2,138,000 (2014: RMB314,000) was recognised in
“other gains-net” (Note 25).

Ht G- F8E 25 OTHER GAINS - NET
2015 2014
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWE HELELE (Losses)/gains on disposal of property,
(BR),&F F8E plant and equipment, net (3,197) 162,079
BERAFEERERLEY Derivative financial instruments fair value
MESRMIA through profit or loss
—REREE — Unrealised losses (2,138) (314)
EBA G (5E36) Gains on business combinations
(Note 36) 4,111 -
Hh Others 17,896 (3,682)
16,672 158,083
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26 Httlr A 26 OTHER INCOME
2015 2014
AR® T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
THE RME Sales of raw materials 34,486 31,019
LN Subsidy income 72,672 63,922
B B (B =E) Government grants (Note) 38,621 24,955
HEME KER Rental income from lease of property,
HEARKENEZ plant and equipment and
Hel A investment properties 127,261 84,850
R WA (H5E37(@) Consultation service income (Note 37(a)) 66,160 46,386
Hth Others 3,318 15,121
342,518 266,253
B 5 - Note:

BT 8 B YR A 5 T 4B e o B % 3 05 BT
EHEERSESE ERARENEAR
HEMEBERGEREREDERMMOR -
ZE BN B E E A TR RRAE
B EH - BEHSEENGRERERERR
[HEMB ALl LB FIREREERDE-

The income from government grants represented immediate financial
support subsidy received from various local governments in the PRC
as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their contributions to the
economy and development of the regions in which the subsidiaries
are located. Such government grants were unconditional and with no
future commitment to be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other
income’ in the consolidated income statements and comparative
figures have been reclassified accordingly.

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BERBEEXAE HE LTS ERER
XTHRAX REAMRX 2 &R DT
T

FTARRMEL BEM
SREmMEENER

KmfFEEE
INBHEERX
RERESER
BIRMAL"
BIEESHM (H5E28)
BHER
{5k AR M 8 (BT RE6)
ME - BEREETE

BREWEIE (5E8)

mREERH (M)
BFEERE
PRTTERERE  MEB R
HibFig &R
BRI BE &
B ERE (M7
FEUE SRR ZRE
(Bm) B (EE15)
FEREREFER
IR FE (Mi5E14)
% EET B &
— B AR S
— R EARTE
Hfth

.
et

analysed as follows:

Raw materials, packaging materials,
consumables and
purchased commodity used
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Manufacturing outsourcing expenses
Promotion and advertising expenses
Employee benefit expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (Note 28)
Transportation expenses
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9)
Operating lease in respect of buildings
City construction tax, property tax and
other tax surcharges
Reversal of provision for impairment of
property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 15)
Reversal of provision of inventories
to net realisable value (Note 14)
Auditors’ remunerations
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Others

Total

2015
AR®T
RMB’000

12,167,255
(173,073)
1,860
2,417,906
3,164,748
957,360
57,018
1,311,777
18,665
15,648
165,596
285,182
(116)
(1,634)
(1,134)
7,283

1,035,222

21,429,563

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses are

2014
ARBT T
RMB’000

12,847,671
302,405
2,048
2,350,078
3,028,652
1,049,280
57,649
1,338,199
11,913
5,286
194,867
249,654
(19)
3,683
(5,318)
6,802

700
1,096,603

22,540,157
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28 ETIRAPEX BEEEEHMHM 28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2015 2014
AR¥T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TERE® Wages and salaries 2,539,209 2,408,311
BRE KA =G A Pension and other social welfare
(ERHREE) (defined contribution plan) 372,175 376,965
BETIREEREREF Staff quarters and housing benefit 102,617 102,249
H fth 18 7 Other benefits 150,747 141,127
3,164,748 3,028,652
(@ EEZEeSFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
HE2015F12A31BEFE 2 The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
AEBRAEAESFTMALTBEEMN in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
H(2014F M B)EE - B35 M included two (2014: two) directors, whose emoluments
2R 39T 2% 2 5 are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 39(a).
R -RENEINTFTEH=F The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2014:
(0H4F =R )EaFMALZ three) individuals during the year are as follows:
FEEII T
2015 2014

192

EXEe EFRME-
H A2 Bh R BN &

(AR®TT)

#E
1,000,001 8 TZE

2,000,000/ 7T (&
N ARBS37,801TE

Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and benefits in kind
(RMB’000) 4,180 3,371

In the band of:

HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB837,801 to
RMB1,675,000)

AR #1,675,0007T) 3

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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MEBRA S (HAR) —FHE

29 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) - NET

2015 2014
AR®T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BMEWA-BEREE Finance income — interest income
LEWMZFEBIA on cash and banks 135,955 105,233
BEZAMBHAX Interest expenses on borrowings (155,910) (162,399)
M 5 B 18558 Net foreign exchange losses (63,910) (20,380)
BEEBEREEZ Less: amounts capitalized on
Bt &5 qualifying assets 110,183 35,397
(109,637) (147,382)
BEUWA S (FKA) —F%  Finance income/(costs) — net 26,318 (42,149)
Fr 18 % B =2 30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2015 2014
AR®T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHRTEM Current income tax
~-BHAFEMNZ2EHMIE - Current tax on profit for the year 319,357 227,622
RIEFTISH (FIEE12) Deferred income tax (Note 12) 4,899 (98,481)
Hh A A Withholding tax on dividends from
IR R% B 2 TR a PRC subsidiary 12,000 -
336,256 129,141
% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 98
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30 FAEHmMx (&)

(a)

(b)

194

MEI XSS ([RERE
Bil)

WARERE R B E A F
TBIE25% (20144 : 25% ) T &K
B ¥R -

BEMEE B2 RMNEHEE
B A B9 BF BE[2011]585% [ B8 AR
AEHEIAFAEEEEETN
BREE ARy AN | - A FE EP b [ Ak
SABRARBIBRS ANz E T
BEEXEHRZRARBERES
15%EBEBE - NEEIHH FE
LNy ke 3 v
REEBEEXEE WA AFER
EFEELM15%EER K-

HAB 1G5

ARARREBEASEHE R ANEERH
EHRESEMAILARHRRBERA
A Ei NRAREREEAFES
HEMEH-

EEERBEBTME AN B
NRIBEREHBRTHES R A
17%%16.5% (20145 : 17% &
16.5% ) BN FT 1S H1 o

% — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT ”)

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to CIT
at rate of 25% (2014: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” ( B %% [2011]585%%8
PORAE 18 30 A 5 3 B A B S SR R B R A ) |
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and,
accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman
Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2014: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.
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30 G (&) 30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HMPESR (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
7N 52 B Bk BT 15 B0 A1 s A1 B2 f2 AR The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
HARGHERRMN 2 EEME differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
25% (20145 : 25% ) st E 2 1w using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2014:
MEEZEWT: 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2015 2014
ARBT ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR TSR AT R Profit before income tax 1,170,761 414,678
T A TE B R Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
SFHE IR in the PRC 292,690 103,670
THEBE2MBZE:  Tax effects of:
BB THERR Preferential tax rates on the profits of
A B R certain subsidiaries (20,500) (8,365)
£ A LRI ARER Utilisation of previously unrecognized
HIAE 1R tax losses (2,114) (2,525)
RIERRIEILFTSH  Tax losses for which no deferred
BEZHIEEE income tax asset was recognized 32,835 28,621
BARBA Income not subject to tax (28,236) (21,244)
DM HZ Expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 49,581 28,984
P B A F Withholding tax on dividends from
IR AT RR B 2 TR a PRC subsidiary 12,000 -
PSR F 2 Income tax expense 336,256 129,141

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 96
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30 FrE®imM% (&) 30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HftriEH (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
EREMEERETD < E/H The income tax charge relating to components of other
S HMT comprehensive income is as follows:
2015 2014
BEA  BUEXM BRBi% BRBEA REX Bz
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETIT ARBTT ARETI
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Eth2Eba Other comprehensive income
~AEHESE - Net fair value (losses)/gains
BEATEF from available-for-sale
(B#B)/HE financial assets (16,717) 5,000 (11,717) 783 (174) 609
ERERER Deferred income tax 5,000 (174)
31 BRAF 31 EARNINGS PER SHARE
HK Basic
EREXRBINDEFERR Gl = Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
BARMGEFNGREZHTTRRINETF attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
HHETE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2015 2014
NABER A AFEWERF  Profit attributable to equity holders of
(AR®FT) the Company (RMB'000) 834,505 285,537
BT AR I 19 B Weighted average number of ordinary
(FR%) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 3,976,154
FRELRZF Basic earnings per share
(BRARKE) (RMB per share) 19.32 cents % 7.18 cents 7
HAARARWEBTHSLBR HE Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
RESRFNEGRERBHN —2- share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

zl 96 % — ¥ E#E R AR 2A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 %
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32 KR

32 DIVIDENDS

2015 2014
AR®T T AR®TTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EFRIRAT RER B Proposed final dividend of
BRE B ARKI.8649 RMB3.864 cents
(20145 - ANR¥1.3225) (2014: RMB1.322 cents)
per ordinary share 166,901 57,107

20154 220144 - AR AIp#E E2014
FR2013F12A31HILFEERKESD
Bl A AR #57,123,0007C (F A R
1.8322% ) & AR #183,212,0007T (
A R#5.0025) °

201658208 RIT 2 MERF R E
EBEHEREEE20156412A31H IEF
EzRBEBRARKI 864 (AHIRE
A AR #166,901,0007T) © It 55 8 75 )
RABRMUEEMNRE -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2015 and 2014 for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounted
to RMB57,123,000 (RMB1.322 cents per share) and
RMB183,212,000 (RMB5.092 cents per share), respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
of RMB3.864 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB166,901,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 20 May 2016. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 97
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2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B P15 154 B i A Profit before income tax 1,170,761 414,678
RTFSEEL 2 A% Adjustments for:
—UEREARZ — Share of profit of investments
FE(RIRE &R (H5E10) accounted for using equity method
(Note 10) (112,945) (84,977)
— T RS (5E6) - Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 6) 57,018 57,649
—ME - -BERZBITE — Depreciation of property, plant and
(FF3E7) equipment (Note 7) 1,311,777 1,338,199
—IRBYENE (f7E8) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8) 18,665 11,913
—EmEEEHN (M) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 15,648 5,286
—HEYME HEX — Losses/(Gains) on disposal of
BENEE (FE) property, plant and equipment
(MF3E25) (Note 25) 3,197 (162,079)
—W B MEERE — Reversal of provision for impairment
A (HFE7) of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) (116) (15)
— B GFEENERFEE — Reversal of inventories to net
(MF5E14) realisable value (Note 14) (1,134) (5,318)
—EWE SERFOMME (#E) - (Reversal)/provision for impairment
B (MaE15) of trade receivables (Note 15) (1,634) 3,683
—MEXZH (H5E29) — Interest expenses (Note 29) 95,579 127,002
— [ H sz (B E29) — Foreign exchange gains (Note 29) 14,058 20,380
—TESBM T ARAFEEIE - Fair value loss on derivative financial
(MF3E25) instruments (Note 25) 1,982 139
— X5 RS (M:E36) — Gain from business combination
(Note 36) 4,111) -
2,568,745 1,726,540
BEESEH): Changes in working capital:
—BEEARITER - (Increase)/decrease in
(3gm),/mL pledged bank deposits (4,220) 5,941
—EUE IR — (Increase)/decrease in
(3gh),@mL trade receivables (37,782) 57,591
—TERIA - ke R EA - Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,
JE W R IE R A (386 hn) deposits and other receivables 408,976 (12,608)
— E i JE B AR e W kI8 - Decrease/(increase) in other
B (3En) non-current receivables 40,172 (12,088)
—1FE (#m),md - (Increase)/decrease in inventories (231,311) 389,524
—“ENEZEFREE — Increase/(decrease) in trade and
#m, CRd) bills payables 169,460 (355,764)
—Hib Nt RIE R ER - Increase/(decrease) in other
#hn, Cd) payables and accruals 867,341 (94,132)
—H M IEBNHAE N R IEE I - Increase in other non-current
payables 201,164 7,014
CEELZES Cash generated from operations 3,982,545 1,712,018
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BEAZ2HE (A)

33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

RIRERERT LEWE KERE In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

BZERER:

property, plant and equipment comprise:

2015 2014

ARBTR ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BRmEFE (FEE7) Net book amount (Note 7) 8,397 405,398
HEME  HER&EN (Losses)/gains on disposal of property,

(E518) /715 (ME25) plant and equipment (Note 25) (3,197) 162,079
H b fE Y E RKFIA Other receivables from buyer 242,764 (242,760)
HEME BEEEEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FriS 5B plant and equipment 247,964 324,717

BBEREN 34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
2015 2014
AR T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R TEERE T 2 ER Guarantees to a related party - 48,927
MR2014F 128318 » NEE L H B & As at 31 December 2014, the Group provides guarantees
NASEBBRHZRITEERBEMR for the bank borrowings and finance leases of Jinmailang
EIRMHIER - N2015FE12 8310 » 5% IE Corporate, an associate of the Group. No such guarantees
REDNFE - existed as at 31 December 2015.
BERAEERRERGONHATEIL The financial guarantee contract had not been recognised
TER WA ER GRS B 5 W ER BERZ in the consolidated financial statements as the Group
BREHK - considered that the fair value of the guarantee contract was

insignificant.

#— %P E R AR 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 99
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35 AR

(a)

200

BARAYE

AEBERYE  BFELRENE
ARAGEMT

35 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2015 2014

AREBT T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BRIAMER B Contracted but not provided for 446,947 637,739

KEIHEAE
FKEFERZARHAN :

AEEE BT A B E &
HABF ETAREHENEENEE
W& T AR ERERRENNRER
TN

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

2015 2014

ARET R AREBFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TEBBE—F Not later than 1 year 23,932 42,802
BiE—FERNBEBAF Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 44,996 38,042

aiE I F Later than 5 years 100,635 103,038

169,563 183,882

% — 1> % B2 R B BR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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35 H=&IE (&) 35 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) HLEHEAE (8) (b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
AEBERZLHAN - The Group is the lessor:
AEEETATRENKEEHER The Group leases out investment properties, plant
FETRHEEWE BB R - and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
ZEBHOBTRAMNTFHERER agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
AT HEBEMNEEHERZET rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
REBRRERNSZEESBE under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
R follows:

2015 2014

AR®T T ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

TBiE—F Not later than 1 year 79,296 62,676
BiE—FETHEBAF Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 98,799 76,559

BBAF Later than 5 years 47,031 27,883

225,126 167,118

36 XBao 36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

BR2015F12A31H  AEE LB &R
B AR¥58,410,400t B EA BB
WHBESHRFGHTEAR AR ([E
BHA]) 250% A1 - ERIWERT A&
BREFE Z50%KRE  EEHRFKA
rEEz2EWBERAR -

ERNWBER REEFEHAENER
ERSHESTEAT S z2281EE 8

Group.

On 31 December 2015, the Group acquired 50% equity
interests in Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. (“Yantai
Tongli”) from the joint venture partner for a cash consideration
of RMB58,410,400. Together with the original 50% equity
interests held by the Group prior to the acquisition, Yantai
Tongli has become a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of the

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
increase its presence in the beverage and instant noodles

TEHA ] i B AR R A B A R o markets. It also expects to reduce costs through economies

of scale.

% — 1> % 7 Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 20/]
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36 EBEH (&)

TERBAFIE G M HER R
BEEMBBERKERABZAFE

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Yantai Tongli, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the acquisition date.

ARET R
RMB’000
RAE - Consideration:
72015512 A31H At 31 December 2015
-HRe - Cash 58,410
BB Total consideration 58,410
Fri g nl s Rl E &= & Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
FiEiEaEsBReRE acquired and liabilities assumed

RehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 45,876
T AR (I3E6) Land use right (Note 6) 21,470
Y B KRR (HRE7) Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) 53,310
558 Inventories 5,966
FEUE 5 8R 3% & H At B W IR Trade and other receivables 2,628
FEA B 5 BR 3k & E M FE - 5K 78 Trade and other payables (8,907)
BREREEE (H:E12) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 12) (2,350)
Al BRI B E R EAE Total identifiable net assets 117,993
NEEEANAISRMFIEEATE Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired/

over consideration payable (4,111)
REBREFERD Original shares held by the Group (55,472)
AERE (MFE10(0)) Under investment in joint ventures (Note 10(b)) 58,410
WERBARMSR S FE B21F Net cash proceeds from the acquisition of

the subsidiary, comprised of
BRHRESNRE (M) Cash consideration paid (Note) (29,756)
FrUR BB AR 2R & KIRE&ZEY Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired 45,876

16,120

202
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EBE6 (#)
B -

M2015F12A31H  AEBE I HREAEHK
AR 29,756,000t MR E&REE D 5 1EME
3038 WS R 2016F 1+ »

U B 48 B B R A R #550,000T 2 R &
ZE2015F12A31H I FE WG A WS
KAPITHAIE TR -

BRESHERNN2015F1 1B D44
AR A KRERBY L EHE K= A
R #22,195,895,0007T & )t F] A B #
838,424,0007T

R

AREBEZ ZREERAR RS —EERD
BRAR([H—0X]) IDREEE
HRGMBBR AR EMZRF - RNAF
EERR/BEZNBARRASEE
ZERECEREERRRRIEREET -

36

37

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Note:

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has paid RMB29,756,000, and
the rest of the consideration payable will be paid in 2016.

Acquisition-related costs of RMB50,000 have been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Had Yantai Tongli been consolidated from 1 January
2015, the consolidated income statement would show
pro-forma revenue of RMB22,195,895,000 and profit of
RMB838,424,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate holding company of the Group is £t — % &%
AR AF (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (‘UPE”), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the
Group are regarded as related parties.

% — % F B R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 F#§
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37 BEAERS (&) 37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(@ BELIXS: (@) Transactions with related parties:
B T ETHR S The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2015 2014
e ARE®TT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RETFLR B dp #5 & Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
G—EIZHBERR Subsidiaries of UPE 197,754 241,702
AEBZEEDER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 112,841 86,942
310,595 328,644
RIFLR K g R 5 - Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
H—rEIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 3,601,255 3,242,552
AEBEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
il - /NS the Group 758,336 443,004
4,359,591 3,685,556
VRE - Logistics service expense: ()
G—EIZHBAG Subsidiaries of UPE 13,461 7,056
B RFEA - Consuitation service income: ()
G—hEZHNBAF Subsidiaries of UPE 62,187 42,894
AEBEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
A WNE| the Group 3,973 3,492
66,160 46,386
HEYE BEREE  Sales of property, plant and
equipment (i)
H—EZHBEAR Subsidiaries of UPE - 520,000
WA - Rental income: (i)
G—hEZHBAT Subsidiaries of UPE 80,437 44,888
AEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 1,730 1,704
82,167 46,592

204
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37 BHMAEXEZ (&)

(@)

BEARS:

B3

(if)

(i)

(%)

WX AW ARARAEEEH
NBERPXEBEEH -

LR m R R R BE &
SR BR T B e A S BR TS TD
RIFAR R 2 T o

H2014F 128 AL EE K A
H—EZMRNEB ARG D
ELREES (AREEFEA
(TPET]) BRTPE#E NI & Z £k
BER) LE2NEAARK
520,000,0007T ' E £ FI 18 A A
R #168,922,000%!) BE A [ H
B (FFFE25) -

HeEHEEMEZBA  RRE
RIRITT PRI Sk 2 fR kAT &

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

% — 1> % Bl R B BR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Transactions with related parties: (Continued)

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The above sales of finished goods and raw materials,
purchases, receipt of logistics service and provision of
consultation service are carried out in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

In December 2014, the Group completed the disposal
of various production lines for the manufacturing of PET
and TP packaging and bottling for beverage products
to two subsidiaries of UPE at a total cash consideration
of RMB520,000,000. The Group derived a gain from
the disposal amounting to RMB168,922,000 which was
recorded in “other gains” (Note 25).

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

205
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37 BEAIXRS (&

(b)

206

ERRARE 5 AR

MN2015F12A31H  AEFBRHE
RABE A B AN E KAk sk

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties:

related parties as at 31 December 2015:

The Group has the following significant balances with its

2015 2014
AREBT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiE Y A B 75 R Balances due from related parties:
JEWE Z 87 Trade receivables (Note 15):
(MFE15) -
G—EZHEBRAR Subsidiaries of UPE 41,113 24,475
AEBEBZEEDLE Joint ventures and associates of
K B X R the Group 2,370 2,370
43,483 26,845
TETHBERAEMEN  Prepayments and other receivables
FE (MIsE16) - (Note 16);
G—EZHERAR Subsidiaries of UPE 40,398 362,193
AEBEZEEDE Joint ventures and associates of
iR AL/NE] the Group 7,030 7,085
47,428 369,278
90,911 396,123
JE < R Bt 7 BAEE Balances due to related parties:
FETE Z 8- Trade payables (Note 21):
(Mf3E21) -
F—DEZHBAR Subsidiaries of UPE 197,431 150,036
AEBZEEDE Joint ventures and associates of
PN the Group 45,242 28,212
242,673 178,248

REER - BN ENBRRT &
HREREERE R FERS-

sheet dates.

% — ¥ E#E R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 BHAIRG (&) 37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
() FEEEBAEHM: (c) Key management compensation:
2015 2014
ARETF T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe EaREMEF  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 14,629 10,681

38 XNAEEEBEXRKRHFE®SE 38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@ AEEEBAERX (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2015 2014
AREBFTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
REB AR Z’E Investment in subsidiaries 7,582,366 7,168,984
R—ZKEEE AR ZMEZ  Interest in an associated company 1,436 1,436
AR EsREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,358 12,076
Y WE K Property, plant and equipment 22 21
Hh IE i ) FE UK IB Other non-current receivables 1,327 5,393
7,600,509 7,187,910
REBEE Current assets
B FIE X Prepayments and
H b e Uk 3k T8 other receivables 4,538 7,608
JE Y BT B8 & RIRIB Amounts due from subsidiaries 634,903 999,301
mMB AR ER Loans to subsidiaries 793,904 3,607,186
RehkBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,475,018 94,828
2,908,363 4,708,923
EE#E Total assets 10,508,872 11,896,833
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38 AAREEEBRNFHIESE 38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(@ AEEEAEX (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2015 2014
AR®BTRT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
s EQUITY
LN Share capital 39,764 39,764
B 10 v B AR Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
Hfth % Other reserves 1,533,715 1,587,555
IRE & A Retained earnings (19,348) 78,287
1R Total equity 6,384,030 6,535,505
=L LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BE Borrowings 3,054,616 4,229,919
REEE Current liabilities
Hih S RIBRETE R Other payables and accruals 68,088 58,796
=P Borrowings 1,000,000 1,072,299
MTESRMITA Derivative financial instruments 2,138 314
1,070,226 1,131,409
weE Total liabilities 4,124,842 5,361,328
ERRkBEEHRESE Total equity and liabilities 10,508,872 11,896,833
KARIEEBERDN20166F3H18 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
AEEEeifE WEHATESREKRE Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and were signed on its
Fo behalf.
EE% REE
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEF HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
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38 XNFEEEEREFHE®ST 38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) ARBREEE (b) Reserve movements of the Company
B4Ry AVTEREE RERF @t
Contribution Fair value Retained

surplus reserves earnings Total

ARBTT AREBETT AR®TT  ARETX

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2014F181A 4% Balance at 1 January 2014 1,789,538 (19,554) 190,024 1,960,008

FEER Loss for the year - - (111,737) (111,737)
AN ESRHEEZ  Fair value gains on avaiable-for-sale

AFEHNG financial assets - 783 - 783

B H2013F 228 Dividends relating to 2013, paid (183,212) - - (183,212)

20145128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2014

423 1,606,326 (18,771) 78,287 1,665,842

FEE#R Loss for the year - - (97,635) (97,635)
AENESRHEEY  Fair value gains on avaiable-for-sale

REEFE financial assets - 3,283 - 3,283

B H2014F 228 Dividends relating to 2014, paid (57,123) - - (57,123)

2015128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2015
423 1,549,203 (15,488) (19,348) 1,514,367
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39 EEENRER 39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
() EEREETHRAEZME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

BEERERITTHRABZHMEH The remuneration of every director and the chief

FIEAN - executive is set out below:

B Z2015F12A31ALLFE: For the year ended 31 December 2015:

EEpng e Hepw4 Eyid:4:1 EE®H @
Salary and Travelling Housing

Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance allowance Total

ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR ARET:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

20156 2015
WIES Executive directors
BERRE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (% & %) 52 3,812 - - 3,864
REESE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung ({4 ) 45 3,929 - 240 4,214
ElE & Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui ( FREI(E) 39 845 - 144 1,028
FHTES Non-executive directors
WEZEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#ff£3%)
(Hi7E @) (Note (a)) 32 S = = 32
BEHEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming ( #75284) 39 - - - 39
BUHTES Independent non-executive
directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te ([R2%) 234 - - - 234
BLEEE Mr. Fan Ren-Da ((E{-#) 234 - - - 234
BEREE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (52
(MizEm) (Note (b)) 72 - - - 72
BRERE Mr. Lo Peter (52 ) 234 - - - 234
BEREE Mr. Chen Johnny ([R5 %)
(H7E(e) (Note (c) 20 = = = 20
1,001 8,586 - 384 9,971
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39 EETEAKRER (&) 39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(@ EERESITHRAEZHME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(&) (Continued)
HE2014F12A31RAEFE (& For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated):
5) :
EENL e  HaRiEa EiRER FEEE B
Salary and Traveling Housing
Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance allowance Total

ARBTT  ARBTT ARETRT AR%ETR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20145 2014
WITER Executive directors
BRELE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (%2 %) 48 1,794 5 - 1,847
FEBEE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&4 ) 42 2,606 5 240 2,893
REBLE Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui ( /&) 36 778 5 144 963
FRITES Non-executive directors -
WEELAE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng
(Fi7E() (#RE 4 ) (Note (d) 25 - - - 25
MEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#E%) 81 - - - 81
BESEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (& =#) 37 - - - 37
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors -
MEERE Mr. Chen Sun-Te ([RZ &) 220 - - - 220
BEELE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (F{Z#) 220 - - - 220
BRREE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (523 184 - - - 184
KREELE Mr. Lo Peter (K2 2) 220 - - - 220
1,113 5178 15 384 6,690
B E Note:
(a) M2015F5815H BT (@)  Retired on 15 May 2015.
(a) M2015F5H815HEE- (o)  Retired on 15 May 2015.
() M2015F12B1BEEZE- (c)  Appointed on 1 December 2015.
(d) M2014F5816HRME- (d)  Retired on 16 May 2014.
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39 EEEAMRER (&

(@)

EERESTHRAEZHME

(%&)

RELZE2015%F R2014512 A 31
BIEFE BEAAREEHES
WS NRARMEAEAESS
NMeERMBEAREER LN INE
B2 RENSIERBEB R (E

RRARNANFEBEREXAFE
NERSEBETEARAES
RETEEXBEEEEAEn
BEAREEEBAREAEM

BERXRG LHEE

40 KB 2 A

o

T B H R20155E12 A31 8 2 = B

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Company to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

40 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

BRA]- of the Company as at 31 December 2015.
AMRIER
ARER wHRAH BERIRBERE Fris R TEER LY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
ERER Directly owned
G—mMERERAA HEHS 865,580,000% 7T 100% 100% BEER/HEHS
200656 H29A
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD865,580,000 Investment holding/Cayman
29 June 2006 Islands
BEREE Indirectly owned
G—0% (PE)REFRAA HE g 1,046,170,000% 7T 100% 100%  REER/HE
199837104
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,046,170,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.*) 10 March 1998
HES-CERMBRAA RESEAR 37,500,000 7T 100% 100%  4EREESH Rm
199241 A13H RAER/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumgj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and

212

instant noodles/PRC
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40 B TR (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRAB BB KB ERTRBERAE FrisiE TEEYBEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
ERG—RBERATF REER 23,400,000 7T 100% 100% EERPEFER/PE
199244 A2H
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD23,400,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.”) 2 April 1992 instant noodles/PRC
KBG-CERRBRAT B Rl A 65,000,000 1. 100% 100%  HERHEEHH
199364 5148 RARHE/HE
(Chengdu President Enterprises Food ~ Chengdu, PRC. USDE65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
B —t%RmBRATF REE L 96,000,000 7T 100% 100%  FEREEHH
199357148 RhEd,/ HE
(Kunshan President Enterprises Food ~ Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REF—CERMEB AR REEE 59,600,000 1. 100% 100%  HERHESRH
199347 A7H RARE/ HE
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMG—ERRATF L E M 75,000,000 7T 100% 100% HEREEHH
1994412 A5H KA ER/ HE
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Corp.) 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BER-—CEERAR RS 39,900,000% ¢ 100% 100%  HEREERH
199546 A15H RAEHE/ HE
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRG—CEBRAE REERE 60,000,000% 7. 100% 100% EERBERH
199842 230 LA/ HE
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRER—CEERAR hEREE 25,000,000 7. 100% 100%  HERHEEHH
199842 26 H R/ HE
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.¥) 26 February 1998 beverages and instant

% — % F B R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARAER wHRAH ERITRMERE FresiiE TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
IRGE—HRRERAE REE R 29,500,000% 7T 100% 100% EERFESRH/HE
200142 A208
(Beijing President Enterprises Drinks  Beijing, PRC. USD29,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
BER—EERAR mEEE 44,000,000% T 100% 100%  SEREEHRH
2001458188 RAEE/HE
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNR—CEERAR RN 20,000,000% T 100% 100%  4EREERH
200167198 RFHEE/ HE
(Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNE—EER AR FR B N 37,000,000% T 100% 100%  4ERHEERH
2002464250 RAEE/+
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- (LB EEBRAR HE L 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% SR FEEARRRESH/
2005F10A17H FE
(President (Shanghai) Trading Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Co., Ltd.%) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and food
products/PRC
GLEEERNERAF Ak 1,000,000%7 & 100% 100%  ANERER/AE
200612 FA28H
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resources
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERF—CERMBERAR HEIE B 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREERH
2007411A88 RHEE/HE
(Kunming President Enterprises Food ~ Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
SEBRERAT i 14,929, 920% 7T 100% 100%  RERR/EH
200846 A5H
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD14,929,920 Investment holding/Hong
Co., Limited) 5 June 2008 Kong
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

e IS AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMALEAR/
NRAB BB KB ERTRBERAE FrisiE TEEYBEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
EBEH-—BRKDA FEES 4,150,000 7T 100% 100% EERBERR/PE
200942 A20H
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
GrEREERERAT B 4,616,155,6007% 7T 100% 100% REZERRES
2009447308
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,616,155,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
EECEERFN(LE) HE g 150,000% 70 100% 100%  EEHH
BRAA 2009558120
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
BEG-ERREROT HEEE 1,000,000% 70 100% 100%  EEREEHH/HE
201043 A9H
(Zixi President Enterprises Zixi, PRC. USD1,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.") 9 March 2010 beverages/PRC
RO FE—CEERRA REKED 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% HEREEHH
201069518 R ER,/ HE
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REBG-—DEEERCERRAR  HEKH AR #1,000,0007T 100% 100%  B#RE/HE
2010%8A24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010
Culture Limited Company®)
EIf—EXEBRAF REET 25,000,000 70 100% 100%  HEREEHH
20104104 28R LA/ HE
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BES—CEERRA HEEE 30,000,000% 70 100% 100%  EERHEEHRH
2010118168 LA/ HE
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant

% — % F B R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2015 F#§

noodles/PRC

218



e R EmAR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 MBATR (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

216

AMRIER
ARAER wHRAH ERITRMERE FresiiE TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
RES—LEBRAA FERE 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEHRH/RE
2010F12H2A
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
Mrgs—tEERAR H B I 7 20,000,000 7T 100% 100%  ERRAERBLE
20104127158
(Akesu President Enterprises Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Co., Ltd.") 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
EMG—LEERADF hERM 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEERH
201141 A28R RAEE/HE
(Taizhou President Enterprises Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEG-EERAT HESE 33,600,000% 7T 100% 100% BERRMRIAFERE
201142F168 REE/HE
(Chongging President Chongging, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
ARA—CEXERAR FEIEHR 20,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERHEERH
2011528248 RHEE/HE
(Balyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
HES-EERREEERLA HELE AR60,000,0007 100% 100%  MEZEK/FE
2003F8A1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd.") 1 August 2003
FRE-—CEEBZAERLF  PELSE AK#20,000,0007T 100% 100%  HEHER/HE
200347 A 188
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd.%)
BRR—CEERAR HE%E 14,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EEREEHRE/HE
201143 A8H
(Hainan President Enterprises Chengmai, PRC. USD14,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
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40 B TR (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRAB HHRAH ERTRBERAE FrisiE TEEYBEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
ARAGF—CEBERDA PEARIE 35,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERHEHH
2010411 A15R LA/ e
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEF—CEERRA HEER 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  FEREEHRH
2011445188 LA/ E
(Jinan President Enterprises Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERR—ERRAR REER 30,000,000% 1T 100% 100% KERBERH
201147 F6H LA/ e
(Guiyang President Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- CEBRRKBRAR RERR 4,800,000% 7 100% 100%  £EBRK/HRE
201147168
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co.Ltd.") 6 July 2011 water/PRC
PEGERRESBERAT g g 950,000% 7T 100% 100% BEeERRAKIEER
201146728H i YL
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & Trading 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Co., Ltd.%) PRC
MNE—CEERAR ST 40,000,000 7T 100% 100%  HEREERH
201146A21H RAEHE/ HE
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD40,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 21 June 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMNGE—EBRAA FREARM 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% EERBERE
2011%59A2H
(Xuzhou President Enterprises Xuzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
H-HE(RL)BRAA REEIL 10,000,000 7T 100% 100% BRERMNE TE
201243 H28H
(President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.%) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER HHRAH ERITRMERE FrsiRiE TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
ARG —rEERATF R 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBESRH/HE
201243 A9AH
(Henan President Enterprises Henan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
ERG—CEBRKERAF REZR 1,700,000 70 100% 100%  EEERMRIEEM
2012458308 e,/ =+
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.”) 30 May 2012 food and dairy products/
PRC
RAES—LEREFRDF R R 44,000,000 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHK
2012467R68 kAR HE
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IEHER—EERAR REER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  4ERHEERH
2012411358 RAERE
(Jiangsu President Enterprises Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 5 November 2012 beverages and instant
noodles
RAWLK—E (FH)ERK REE M AR #135,000,0007T 100% 100%  HERZK/FE
BRAAF 201343H15H
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin, PRC. RMB135,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.”)
G—0E (B EXMAE REEL AR %60,000,0007 100% 100%  RWE/+REH
BRAF 2013F4A9H
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Real  Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Estate Development Co., Ltd.) 9 April 2013
EER—EERAT RERI 13,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHRE/HE
201344 H228
(Ningxia President Enterprises Yinchuan, PRC. USD13,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
ARER—CEERAA B 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEREERH
201355 A9A EHEE/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Inner Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Mongolia) Co., Ltd.*) 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
ARER HHRAH ERTRBERE Fris i TEEYBEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
IRFE-CESHRRERAF REER 49,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERHERH
20136730 LA/ P
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD49,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink & Food Co., Ltd.") 3 June 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
WEG—CEEBR AR REER 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  AEREEHH/HE
201349150
(Shanxi President Enterprises Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
RS- CEERAF HELE 40,000,000% 70 100% 100%  EEEE@HLE/F
2001F10A14R
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd") 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
B B G — R E A MBI B [ 19,500,000 7T 100% 100%  EERBEHH/HE
BRAF 2013511 A1H
(Uni-President Enterprise Hutubi, PRC. USD19,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hutubi) Tomato Products 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
Technology*) Co., Ltd.”)
PSR- CERHRRERRA HE g 25,000,000 7 100% 100%  HEREERH
2014455 A150 RAEE/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.) 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
H—HEB (R ARAA REHL AR #96,000,0007 100% 100%  EREAMHE/HRE
200449238
(Uni-President Trading Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Hubei) Co.,Ltd.*) 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
REF—CEERAA REXE 12,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREESRE/H
201458150
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
WRR—CEARAF RE M 6,000,000 7T 100% - EERBERHE/HE
201543A108
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USDE,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co.,Ltd") 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
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40 B R (&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER,
ARAER B R A ERTRMERE FrisiiE TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2015 2014
BARGEMFMIEBRAF REES AR#100,000,0007C 100% - EERBERE/HE
200956 H9H
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries VYantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd") 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
g (B RR HEE L 1,200,00057¢ 100% - EEREEARE/HE
BRAA 1995123278
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. USD1,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Products Technology 27 December 1995 seasoning/PRC

Co., Ltd.")

FRBEMRTE 8B REBHNHERF
ERERECER -NASHSEMK
V2 —EMNBRRNEHREZERE

ERF .

* RXEABDOBAARRERERNBE

RXERSH -

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—RAMSHSEMBINERAR)

(Stock Code B3 4RE%: 220)
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